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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Watauga County, North Carolina, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County's basic
financia statements as listed in the table of contents. These financia statements are the
responsibility of Watauga County’s management. Our responsibility 5 to express an
opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Appal CART. Those financia statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the Appal CART is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financia audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test bass, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each magjor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Watauga County, North Carolina as of June 30, 2006, and the respective
changes in financia position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the genera fund and capita reserve fund for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America



Management's Discussion and Analysis, the schedules of funding progress, employer
contributions and the notes to the required schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers
Special Separation Allowances are not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information and
express no opinion thereon.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aso issued our report dated
September 7, 2006 on our consideration of Watauga County’s internal control over
financia reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financia
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Watauga County,
North Carolina. The combining and individual nhonmajor fund schedules, as well as the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and the
statistical information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is farly stated, in al materia respects, in relation to the basic financia
statements taken as awhole.

Bryce Holder, CPA, PA

September 7, 2006
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County

MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended June 30, 2006

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Watauga County, we offer readers of Watauga County’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the County's financial
statements and notes, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $49,051,993.

The County’s total net assets increased by $9,444,277 primarily due to an increase in revenues (fueled by an
increase in the tax rate for education that generated an additional $2.6 million and an increase in the tax levy
from properties being added) and a decrease in expenditures (some budgeted expenditures for capital outlay
were not expended in the current fiscal year).

The County’s unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $13,770,671 at the end of the year, representing
34.1% of total General Fund expenditures.

Watauga County's total debt decreased by $672,842 during the current fiscal year. The key factor n this
decrease was the scheduled payments of existing debt.

Watauga County maintained it's A bond rating.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Watauga County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components, 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

The basic financial statements present two different views of he County's finances through the use of governmentwide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Watauga County.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through J) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the governmentwide statements.
There are four parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund statements, 2) he budgetary comparison
statement 3) the proprietary fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements are thenotes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of
the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the
County’s programs. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Following the notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding information about the County's
pension plans.

Governmentwide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s finances,
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and
long-term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two governmentwide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are the
difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the County’s
financial condition.

Government-wide financial statements may be divided into as many as three categories. 1) governmental activities, 2)

business-type activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such
as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance
most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. This includes
landfill services offered by Watauga County. The final category is the component unit. Appalcart is a separate not-for-profit
organization, which operates a transportation authority primarily in Watauga County. Watauga County Board of
Commissioners appoints the seven-member governing body. Watauga County provides some financial support and Appalcart
is financially accountable to the County.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
Watauga County, like all governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or
non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All
of the funds of the County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s activities are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be
available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting. This method has a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to
finance the County’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally
adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of
the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from
identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of
accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The
statement shows three columns: 1) the final budget as amended by the board, 2) the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund, and 3) the difference or variance between the final budget and the
actual resources and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified
accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County has one proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-ike activities in the government-wide financial statements. Watauga County uses enterprise funds to
account for its solidwaste operations. This fund is the same as those separate activities shown in the business-type activities
in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the government.
Watauga County has 4 fiduciary funds, one which is a health insurance trust fund and 3 which are agency funds.

Notesto the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 14 of this
report.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required
supplementary information concerning Watauga County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 42 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Watauga County’s Net Assets
Figure 2

Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current and other assets $ 29,408,366 27,516,217 3,637,491 3,444,330 33,045,857 30,960,547
Capital assets 33,261,940 26,975,790 4,730,779 4,647,836 _37,992,719 31,623,626
Total asset 62,670,306 54,492,007 8,368,270 8,092,166 71,038,576 62,584,173
Long-term liabilities, outstanding 19,970,732 20,560,831 326,088 349,091 20,296,820 20,909,922
Other liabilities 1,319,484 1,634,075 370,279 432,460 1,689,763 _2,066,535
Total liabilities 21,290,216 22,194,906 696,367 781,551 21,986,583 22,976,457
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 25,571,505 20,063,795 4,515,138 4,340,234 30,086,643 24,404,029
Restricted 731,264 869,165 -- - 731,264 869,165
Unrestricted 15,077,321 11,364,141 3,156,765 2,970,381 18,234,086 14,334,522
Total net assets $41.380.000 32297101  £671903 1310615 49051903 39607716

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets of
the County exceeded liabilities by $49,051,993 at June 30, 2006. The County’s net assets increased by $9,444,277 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Net assets is reported in three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of
$30,086,643, Restricted net assets of $731,264 and Unrestricted net assets of $18,234,086.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the County's investment in County owned capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was
issued to acquire those items. The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding debt,
the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities. At June 30, 2006, the increase in this category of net assets is due to current year additions to capital
assets being more than offset by current year depreciation expenses and new long-term debt issuances.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted governmental net
assets:

Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a collection percentage of 98.32%, higher than
the 2005 statewide average of 97.04%.

Increase in charges for services due to economic growth.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County Changes in Net Assets

Figure 3
Government Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $1,961,872 2,696,681 3,744,117 3,244,959 5,705,989 5,941,640
Operating grants and contributions 5,757,594 4,243,474 10,208 22,555 5,767,802 4,266,029
General revenues:
Property taxes 24,476,446 20,944,307 - - 24,476,446 20,944,307
Other taxes 12,661,243 11,792,720 - - 12,661,243 11,792,720
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs 13,276 13,054 - - 13,276 13,054
Donations 1,009,506 - - - 1,009,506 -
Other 1,055,250 656,211 97,395 59,911 1,152,645 716,122
Total revenues 46,935,187 40,346,447 3,851,720 3,327,425 50,786,907 43,673,872
Expenses:
General government 5,718,350 5,266,136 - - 5,718,350 5,266,136
Public safety 9,652,800 7,546,298 - - 9,652,800 7,546,298
Economic and physical development 867,004 789,593 - - 867,004 789,593
Human services 8,112,903 7,817,570 - - 8,112,903 7,817,570
Cultural and recreation 1,350,570 1,207,295 - - 1,350,570 1,207,295
Education 11,143,551 10,946,838 - - 11,143,551 10,946,838
Interest on long-term debt 744,452 854,586 - - 744,452 854,586
Solid Waste - - 3,753,000 3,296,450 3,753,000 3,296,450
Total expenses 37,589,630 34,428,316 3,753,000 3,296,450 41,342,630 37,724,766
Increase in net assets before transfers and
special item 9,345,557 5,918,131 98,720 30,975 9,444,277 5,949,106
Special Item; Property tax refund to Appalachian
Student Housing Corporation - (296,521) - (32,400) - (328,921)
Transfers (262,568) (339,351) 262,568 339,351 - -
Increase in net assets 9,082,989 5,282,259 361,288 337,926 9,444,277 5,620,185
Net assets, July 1 32,297,101 26,850,607 7,310,615 6,972,689 39,607,716 33,823,296
Prior Period adjustment - 164,235 - - - 164,235
Net assets, June 30 41,380,090 32,297,101 7,671,903 7,310,615 49,051,993 39,607,716

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by $9,082,989 thereby accounting for
96.0% of the total growth in the net assets of Watauga County. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Increase in interest earned on investment revenue above budgeted amounts

Increased collections of property tax revenue above budgeted amounts

Solicitation of additional grant revenues for the Public Safety

Maintenance of the County's high tax collections rate of 98.32%

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased Watauga County’s netassets by $361,288, accounting for 4.0 % of
the total growth in the government’s net assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Increase in revenues due to increased use of County solid waste facilities.

Reduced debt services costs




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Watauga County used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of Watauga County’'s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.
Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the
General Fund was $13,770,671 while total fund balance reached $21,146,087. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 34.1 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 52.3 percent of that
same amount.

At June 30, 2006, the governmental funds of Watauga County reported a combined fund balance of $27,235,886, a 9.05
percent increase over last year. The primary reason for this increase is the increase in fund balance in the General Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally,
budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare
the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts
from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to
maintain services. Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues and expenditures by $12,963,486.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were $1,286,278 more than the budgeted amount. Actual operating
expense was less than budgeted by $6,653,154.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Solidwaste Landfill Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$3,156,765. The total growth in net assets was $361,288.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Watauga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business - type activities as of June
30, 2006, totals $37,992,719 (net of depreciation). These assets include buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, and vehicles. Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

Purchased new vehicles for County departments

Completed construction of new solidwaste transfer station

Continued construction of new jail and law enforcement center

Continued renovation of new administration building

Purchased new front end loader, recycling truck, and trash truck for solid waste operations
Purchased approximately 73 acres of land adjacent to Brookshire Park

Began renovation and addition to Watauga County Courthouse




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County's Capital Assets
Figure 4
WATAUGA COUNTY'S CAPITAL ASSETS

(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business

Activities Activities Total

2006 2006 2006
Land $ 9,144,031 1,377,212 10,521,243
Buildings 13,045,599 2,739,477 15,785,076
Other improvements 68,090 176,366 244,456
Equipment 1,071,209 44,506 1,115,715
Vehicles 775,292 352,302 1,127,594
Construction in progress 9,157,719 40,916 9,198,635
Total $ 33,261,940 4,730,779 37,992,719

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2006, Watauga County had bonded debt outstanding of $11,505,000 all of which is
backed by the good faith and credit of the County. The County also has several installm ent purchase notes outstanding.
A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

Watauga County's Qutstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds

Figure 5
Governmental Activities
2006 2005 2004 2003
General obligation bonds $ 11,505,000 12,915,000 14,320,000 15,355,000

Watauga County's total debt decreased by $672,842 or (3.32%) during the past fiscal due to annual debt service
payments.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of his document, Watauga County maintained it's A bond rating. This
bond rating is a good indication of the sound financial condition of Watauga County. A good bond rating also helps keep
interest costs low on the County's outstanding debt.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent of
the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt margin for
Watauga County is $458,004,741.

Additional information regarding Watauga County's long-term debt can be found in note 3 beginning on page 35 of this
report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following key economic indicators reflect the economic environment the County is working in.

- The County is experiencing a low unemployment rate of 3.6%, third lowest in the state

- The County continues to experience growth in the tourism industry with an annual economic impact of
approximately $164 million.

- Appalachian State University’s economic impact is estimated at $407.1 million a year and provides

stability to the local economy

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

Governmental activities - The County’s first four year property revaluation cycle was completed with values to be effective with
tax bills for FY 2006/07. The County’s property tax rate was reduced to the revenue neutral rate of 31.3 cents per $100 in
property valuation. 3.4 cents of the tax rate which generates approximately $2.5 million in property tax revenue is earmarked
for education. Sales tax revenue is projected to increase due to continued economic growth. Planning and Inspections fees
were increased to comparable fees for surrounding towns and counties.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund includes a 7.3% increase in the current expense appropriation to the school
system as well as $2,522,858 to be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund to fund future high school renovations,
construction and/or debt service. In addition, $290,000 is set a side in the Capital Reserve Fund for an elementary school
capital improvement plan.

Businesses-type Activities: The County budgeted increases in tipping, green box and landfill fees in the Solidwaste Landfill
Fund. These increases will generate approximately $477,860.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Watauga
County Finance Director, 814 West King Street-Room 216 Boone, NC 28607.




Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit A
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total AppalCART
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,594,960 3,310,715 27,905,675 502,478
Receivables (net) 2,023,021 311,234 2,334,255 2,259
Due from other governments 2,176,616 15,542 2,192,158 643,429
Inventories -- -- - 104,868
Prepaid items 169,476 - 169,476 10,450
Deferred charges - issuance cost 79,609 - 79,609 -
Deferred charges - refunding 308,749 - 308,749 -
Intangible asset - advanced funding
of pension obligation 55,935 - 55,935 -
Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and
construction in progress 18,301,750 1,888,209 20,189,959 -
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation 14,960,190 2,842,570 17,802,760 3,649,147
Total capital assets 33,261,940 4,730,779 37,992,719 3,649,147
Total assets 62,670,306 8,368,270 71,038,576 4,912,631
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 1,035,808 275,881 1,311,689 637,281
Unearned revenue 167,423 153,934 321,357 18,819
Accrued interest payable 116,253 - 116,253 -
Customer deposits - 76 76 -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 2,126,384 94,322 2,220,706 -
Due in more than one year 17,844,348 172,154 18,016,502 --
Total liabilities 21,290,216 696,367 21,986,583 656,100
NET ASSETS --
Invested in capital assets, net of -
related debt 25,571,505 4,515,138 30,086,643 3,649,147
Restricted for: --
Public safety 581,299 - 581,299 -
Register of Deeds 149,965 - 149,965 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 15,077,321 3,156,765 18,234,086 607,384
Total net assets $ 41,380,090 7,671,903 49,051,993 4,256,531

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

1



Watauga County, North Carolina

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating Grants Capital Grants
and and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 5,718,350 867,380 47,659 --
Public safety 9,652,800 704,877 1,792,213 -
Economic and physical development 867,004 -- 209,254 --
Human service 8,112,903 21,339 3,708,468 -
Cultural and recreation 1,350,570 368,276 -- --
Education 11,143,551 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 744,452 -- -- --
Total governmental activities 37,589,630 1,961,872 5,757,594
Business-type activities:
Solid waste 3,753,000 3,744,117 10,208 -
Total $ 41,342,630 5,705,989 5,767,802 --
Component unit:
AppalCART $ 2,137,117 865,650 956,809 1,025,567

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Investment earnings, unrestricted
Miscellaneous, unrestricted
Donations, unrestricted
Loss on sale of assets
Transfers

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending



Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit B
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total AppalCART
(4,803,311) - (4,803,311)
(7,155,710) - (7,155,710)
(657,750) - (657,750)
(4,383,096) - (4,383,096)
(982,294) - (982,294)
(11,143,551) - (11,143,551)
(744,452) -- (744,452)
(29,870,164) - (29,870,164)
- 1,325 1,325
(29,870,164) 1,325 (29,868,839)
710,909

24,476,446 - 24,476,446 -

11,327,346 - 11,327,346 -

1,333,897 - 1,333,897 -

13,276 - 13,276 -
863,935 97,395 961,330 13,113
191,315 - 191,315 -

1,009,506 1,009,506
- - - (10,617)
(262,568) 262,568 - --
38,953,153 359,963 39,313,116 2,496
9,082,989 361,288 9,444,277 713,405
32,297,101 7,310,615 39,607,716 3,543,126
41,380,090 7,671,903 49,051,993 4,256,531

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit C
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006
Capital Other Total
Reserve Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,517,308 5,432,302 645,350 24,594,960
Taxes receivable, net 573,499 -- 54,708 628,207
Due from other governments 2,176,616 -- -- 2,176,616
Due from other funds 117,799 -- -- 117,799
Accounts receivable, net 1,177,628 -- 185,522 1,363,150
Other assets 169,476 -- -- 169,476
Total assets $ 22,732,326 5,432,302 885,580 29,050,208
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 980,945 -- 54,863 1,035,808
Unearned revenue 8,879 -- 796 9,675
Deferred revenue 596,415 -- 54,625 651,040
Due to other funds -- -- 117,799 117,799
Total liabilities 1,586,239 -- 228,083 1,814,322
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
State statute 3,641,518 -- 185,522 3,827,040
Encumbrances 3,583,933 -- -- 3,583,933
Register of Deeds 149,965 -- -- 149,965
Unreserved 13,770,671 5,432,302 -- 19,202,973
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds - -- 12,355 12,355
Capital projects funds - -- 459,620 459,620
Total fund balances 21,146,087 5,432,302 657,497 27,235,886
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 22,732,326 5,432,302 885,580
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (Exhibit 1) are different because:
The pension assets resulting from contributions in excess
of the annual required contribution are not financial resources
and therefore are not required in the funds. 55,935
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 33,261,940
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 31,664
Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues in fund statements. 493,292
Deferred charges based on refunding issues. 388,358

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds (Note 3).

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Local option sales taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical
development
Human services
Cultural and recreational
Intergovernmental:
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Proceeds from loan
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances-beginning

Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit D
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Capital Other Total
Reserve Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds

$ 23,233,814 - 1,294,585 24,528,399
11,327,346 - - 11,327,346
1,080,261 - 253,636 1,333,897

13,276 - - 13,276

4,160,620 45,000 1,988,043 6,193,663
922,003 - - 922,003

587,413 -- -- 587,413

677,597 183,471 19,254 880,322
1,009,506 - 1,306 1,010,812
190,009 - - 190,009
43,201,845 228,471 3,556,824 46,987,140
10,379,316 - 124,551 10,503,867
6,440,079 - 5,064,680 11,504,759
810,252 - - 810,252
7,518,811 -- -- 7,518,811
1,232,727 - - 1,232,727
11,142,536 -- -- 11,142,536

-- - 383,834 383,834

2,131,560 - - 2,131,560
735,132 - - 735,132
40,390,413 - 5,573,065 45,963,478
2,811,432 228,471 (2,016,241) 1,023,662
3,549,079 4,187,858 - 7,736,937
(5,046,129) (3,469,678) 516,302 (7,999,505)
1,500,000 - - 1,500,000

2,950 718,180 516,302 1,237,432

2,814,382 946,651 (1,499,939) 2,261,094
18,331,705 4,485,651 2,157,436 24,974,792

$ 21,146,087 5,432,302 657,497 27,235,886

Fund balances-ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit D
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,261,094

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount

by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the

current period 6,286,151

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in

the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized
for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable
available financial resources. In the statement of activities,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses
and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term
debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis

until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment
combines the net changes for four balances.

Compensated absences (41,461)
Advance funding of pension obligation 8,315
Accrued interest expense (3,903)
Taxes receivable (51,953)
Combined adjustment (89,002)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of

the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial

resources of governmental funds. Neither transactions has

any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report

the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are

deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment

of long-term debt and related items. 624,746

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 9,082,989

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund and Annually Budgeted Major Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmetal
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic & Physical
Human services
Cultural and recreation
Education
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other charges
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Future project funding
Loan proceeds
Fund balance appropriated
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

$

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

General Fund

Variance with

Budget Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

22,470,083 22,470,083 23,233,814 763,731
11,283,996 11,283,996 11,327,346 43,350
675,500 675,500 1,080,261 404,761
12,500 12,500 13,276 776
3,783,446 4,607,762 4,160,620 (447,142)
833,731 836,512 922,003 85,491
547,108 547,757 587,413 39,656
312,500 312,500 677,597 365,097

- 1,000,981 1,009,506 8,525

111,376 167,976 190,009 22,033
40,030,240 41,915,567 43,201,845 1,286,278
6,195,781 15,579,700 10,379,316 5,200,384
6,652,779 7,128,342 6,440,079 688,263
837,676 880,125 810,252 69,873
7,659,971 7,849,113 7,518,811 330,302
1,280,686 1,286,454 1,232,727 53,727
10,559,792 11,452,124 11,142,536 309,588
2,064,845 2,131,573 2,131,560 13
713,878 736,136 735,132 1,004
35,965,408 47,043,567 40,390,413 6,653,154
4,064,832 (5,128,000) 2,811,432 7,939,432
69,109 3,562,321 3,549,079 (13,242)
(4,539,412) (5,046,129) (5,046,129) -
-- 1,500,000 1,500,000 --

405,471 5,111,808 - (5,111,808)
(4,064,832) 5,128,000 2,950 (5,125,050)
- - 2,814,382 2,814,382

-- -- 18,331,705 --

-- -- 21,146,087 --




Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit E
General Fund and Annually Budgeted Major Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Capital Reserve Fund

Variance with

Budget Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

- - 45,000 45,000

60,000 60,000 183,471 123,471
60,000 60,000 228,471 168,471
60,000 60,000 228,471 168,471
4,187,858 4,187,858 4,187,858 -
- (3,482,920) (3,469,678) 13,242
(4,247,858) (3,018,733) - 3,018,733
- 2,253,795 - (2,253,795)

(60,000) (60,000) 718,180 778,180

- - 946,651 946,651

- -- 4,485,651 --

. - 5,432,302 -

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.
8



Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Total current assets

Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Installment purchase payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred Revenue
Compensated absences
Installment purchase payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

3,310,715
311,234
15,542

3,637,491

1,888,209
2,842,570

4,730,779

8,368,270

275,881
76
94,322

370,279

153,934
50,835
121,319

326,088

696,367

4,515,138
3,156,765

7,671,903

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit G
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 3,744,117
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 10,208
Total operating revenues 3,754,325
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Landfill operations 3,567,949
Depreciation 177,998
Total operating expenses 3,745,947
Operating income (loss) 8,378
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest and investment revenue 97,395
Interest paid on long term debt (7,053)
Total non operating revenue (expenses) 90,342
Income (loss) before transfers 98,720
Transfers to (from) other funds (net) 262,568
Change in net assets 361,288
Total net assets - beginning 7,310,615
Total net assets - ending $ 7,671,903

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statement.
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Exhibit H
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Fund
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Solid
Waste
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 3,722,488
Cash paid for goods and services (2,692,533)
Cash paid to employees for services (871,572)
Other operating revenue 10,208
Net cash provided by operating activities 168,591
Cash flows from noncapital financing
Operating transfers (net) 262,568
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (260,941)
Principal paid on installment purchase contracts (91,960)
Interest paid on installment purchase contracts (7,053)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (359,954)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 97,395
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 168,600
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 3,142,115
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 3,310,715
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income $ 8,378
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 177,998
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable (24,562)
Increase in deferred revenue 2,933
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (5,502)
Increase in accrued vacation pay 9,346
Total adjustments 160,213
Net cash used by operating activities $ 168,591

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit |
Watauga County, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Pension
Trust Agency
Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 131,075 257,595
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ -- 257,595
Net Assets:
Assets held in trust for pension benefits $ 131,075 --

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Watauga County, North Carolina Exhibit J
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Pension
Trust
Fund
June 30,
2006
Additions:
Employer contributions $ 38,803
Interest earned 3,438
Total additions 42,241
Deductions:
Benefits 28,560
Administrative expense 243
Total deductions 28,803
Change in net assets 13,438
Net assets, beginning 117,637
Net assets, ending $ 131,075
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Note 1 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies of Watauga County and its component unit conform to generaly accepted
accounting principles as goplicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more sgnificant
accounting policies

A. Reporting Entity:

The County, which is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners, is one of the 100 counties
established in North Carolina under North Carolina Generd Statute 153A-10. Asrequired by generdly
accepted accounting principles, these financid statements present the County and its component units,
legdly-separate entities for which the County is financidly accountable. The discretely presented
component unit presented below is reported in a separate column in the County's combined financid
datements in order to emphasize that it islegaly separate from the County.

Appal CART

AppadCART operates mainly in Watauga County in the northwest part of North Carolina, providing
trangportation services to the various areas and resdents within Watauga County. Watauga County's
Board of Commissoners gppoints the severt member governing board of Appa CART and Appa CART
operates within the County's boundaries for the benefit of the County's resdents. The County provides
somefinancial support to Appd CART but it isnot responsible for the debts of Appa CART except when
such areexpresdy granted by statute or by the consent of the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County.
The Board of Commissoners of Watauga County fas the authority to terminate the existence of

AppaCART aany time, provided a60-Day written noticeis given to Appd CART, and dl property
and assats of Appad CART shdl automaticaly becomethe

property of Watauga County and the County shall succeed to dl rights, obligations and ligbilities of
AppadCART. AppadCART desgnates its own management, approves its own budget, and maintainsits
own accounting system; however, Appd CART isfiscally accountable to Watauga County, and the County
has the authority to examine d| records and accounts at any time. Appad CART, which hasa June 30 year-
end, is presented asif it were a proprietary fund.

B. Basisof Presentation —Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation, M easurement Focus— Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statement: The statement of net assats and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the County) and its component unit. These satementsinclude
thefinancid activitiesof the overal government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double counting of internd activities These datements diginguish between the
gover nmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmentd activitiesgeneraly arefinanced
through taxes, intergovernmenta revenues, and other non-exchangetransactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to externd parties.
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Note 1 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
difference busness-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's governmentd

activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specificaly associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiableto aparticular function. Indirect expensesdlocationsthat have been made
in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (@) fees and
chargespaid by therecipients of goods or services offered by the programsand (b) grantsand contributions
that areredtricted to meeting the operationa or capital requirementsof aparticular program. Revenuesthat
are not classfied as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as generd revenues.

Fund Financial Statements Thefund financid statements provideinformation about the County'sfunds,
including itsfiduciary funds. Separate satements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financid statementsis on mgor governmenta and
enterprisefunds, each digplayed in aseparate column. All remaining governmental and enterprisefundsare
aggregated and reported as nonmgor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associaed with the principd activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentidly equa vaues. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following magor governmenta funds:

General Fund — Thisisthe County’s primary operating fund. It accountsfor dl financia resourcesof the
genera government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Reserve Fund —Thisisaspecid revenuefund. It accountsfor the County’ sreserves set asidefor
further capital asset additions.

The County reports the following maor enterprise fund:

Solid Waste Fund — Thisfund accountsfor the operation, maintenance, and development of the County's
landfill and disposd Stes.

The County reports the following fund types.

Pension Trust Fund- The County has a Pensgon Trust Fund, that accounts for the Law Enforcement
Officer’s Specid Separation Allowance, a Sngle-employer, public employee retirement system

Agency Funds — Agency funds are custodia in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating
results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behaf of others. The County
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Note 1 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

maintainsthefollowing agency funds: the Socia Services Fund, which accountsfor moneys deposited with
the Department of Socid Services for the benefit of certain individuds, the Heath Benefits Fund, which
accountsfor moneys held for the County's self insurance for disability and retireeinsurance; and the Vehicle
Tax- Towns Fund, which accounts for registered motor vehicle

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (continued):

property taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various municipdities within the County.
M easurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North CarolinaGenerd Statutes, dl funds of the County are maintained during the year
using the modified accrud badis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements— Thegovernment-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financia statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary
fund and fiduciary fund financid statements are reported using the accrua basis of accounting. Revenues
arerecorded when earned and expenses arerecorded at thetimeliabilitiesareincurred, regardless of when
therelated cash flowstake place. Non-exchangetransactions, inwhich the County gives(or receives) vaue
without directly receiving (or giving) equa vaue in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements,
and donations. On an accrua bas's, revenue from property taxesisrecognized in thefisca year for which
thetaxesarelevied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in thefiscd year in
which al digibility requirements have been stidfied.

Amounts reported as program revenuesinclude 1) chargesto customers or gpplicantsfor goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including specia assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenuesrather than
as program revenues. Likewise, generd revenuesinclude dl taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating
revenues and expenses generdly result from provided services and producing and delivering goods in
connecting with a proprietary fund's principa ongoing operations. The principa operating revenues of the
County enterprisefunds are chargesto customersfor salesand services. Operating expensesfor enterprise
fundsincludethe cost of sdesand services, adminigtrative expenses, and depreciation on capitd assets Al
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements— Governmenta fundsare reported using the current financia
resources measurement focus and the modified accrud basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. Expendituresare recorded when therelated fund liability is
incurred, except for principd and interest on generd long-term debt, dams and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expendituresto the extent that they have matured. Genera
capital asset acquidtions are reported as expenditures in governmenta funds. Proceeds of generd long-
term debt and acquisitions under capita leases are reported as other financing sources.
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

The County consdersal revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrua. At June 30, taxes receivable are materialy past due and are not

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

consdered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, asof January 1,
1993, State law dtered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered
motor vehiclesin North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Watauga

County isrespongblefor billing and collecting the property taxeson dl registered motor vehicles on behdf
of al municipdities and specia tax digtricts in the county. For those motor vehicles registered under the
staggered system and for vehiclesnewly registered under the annua system, property taxesare duethefirst
day of the fourth month &fter the vehicles are registered. The billed

taxes are gpplicable to the fiscd year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered
from March 2005 through February 2006 apply to thefisca year ended June 30, 2006. Uncollected taxes
which were billed during this period are shown as arecel vable on these financid statements. In addition, as
of January 1, 2006, State law implemented a staggered expiration date system for annualy registered
vehicles as part of the converson into the staggered regidration. Origindly, annudly regigtration expired
December 31% each year with taxes due by May 1% of thefollowing year. To transition from the taggered
into the annud regidration, the initial 2006 regigtration renewds will vary from 7 to 18 months after
December 31, 2005. Once these initid renewas have expired, al vehicles that are previoudy annualy
regisered will be in the staggered system.

Salestaxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behdf of the County are recognized asrevenue.
Intergovernmental revenues, and salesand services are not susceptibleto accrua because generdly they are
not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
quaifying expenditures have been incurred and dl other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under theterms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by acombination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorica block grants, and generd revenues. Thus when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It isthe
County'spolicy tofirst goply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categoricd
block grants, and then by generd revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements
and Interpretationsissued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

C. Budgetary Data

The County's budgets are adopted asrequired by the North CarolinaGenerd Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the Generd Fund, the Capital Reserve, the Substance Abuse Tax, the Emergency Telephone,
Fire Didrict, Disaster Relief, Lance Creek Restoration, and Revauation
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Note 1 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

C. Budgetary Data (continued)

Specid Revenue Funds, and Enterprise funds. All annual gppropriations lgpse a the fiscd year-end.
Project ordinances are adopted for the CDBG Housing Rehatiilitation, the CDBG Rehabiilitation Grant, and
the CDBG Urgent Needs Specid Revenue Fundsand the Capita Projects Fund. All budgets are prepared
using the modified accrua basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally

exceed gppropriations a the functional leve for dl annudly budgeted funds and a the object leve for the
multi-year funds. The budget officer isauthorized by the budget ordinanceto transfer appropriation withina
fund up to 10% of the total departmenta appropriation; however, any revisons that dter the totd
expenditures of any fund must be gpproved by the governing board. During the year, severd immaterid
amendmentsto theorigind budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the
fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annud
ordinance can be adopted.

D. Assats, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and | nvestments

All deposts of the County and Appa CART are made in board-designated official depostoriesand are
secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County and Appa CART may designate, as an officid
depository, any bank or savings association whose principd officeislocated in North Carolina. Also, the
County and Appa CART may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of depost.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County and Appd CART to invest in obligations of the United
Statesor obligationsfully guaranteed both asto principa and interest by the United States; obligationsof the
State of North Caroling; bonds and notes of any North Carolina loca government or public authority;
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercid paper and
bankers acceptances,; and the North Carolina Capita Management Trust (NCCMT).

The County and Appd CART’ s investments with amaturity of more than one year a acquisition and nor+
money market investmentsare carried at fair val ue as determined by quoted market prices. TheNCCMT
Cash Portfolio's securities, an SEC-registered (2a7) money market mutud fund, are vaued at fair value,
which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value.

Money market investments that have aremaining maturity a the time of purchase of one year or lessare
reported at amortized cost. Non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at
cost.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Note 1 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

The County poolsmoney from several funds, except the Pension Trust Fund, to facilitatedisbursement and
investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, dl cash and invesmentsare essentidly demand
deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. Appa CART considers demand deposits and
investments purchased with an original maturity of

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (continued):

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

three months or less, which are not limited asto use, to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Ad Valorem Taxes Recelvable

In accordance with State Law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County leviesad valorem taxeson
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscd year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, pendtiesand interest do not accrue until thefollowing January 6. These
taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2005.

4. Allowancesfor Doubtful Accounts

All receivablesthat historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an dlowancefor doubtful
accounts. Thisamount isestimated by andyzing the percentage of receivablesthat werewritten off in prior
years.

5. Inventory

Theinventories of Appd CART are maintained for fud ail, tires, and vehicle parts, vauationisat lower of
cost or market on an average basis.

6. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital

assets are recorded at their estimated fair vaue at the date of donation. Minimum capitdization is$5,000
for dl governmenta fund assets. OnJuly 1, 1989, the County established the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund
to account for the operations of the landfill. At thistime, dl landfill assets were trandferred to this fund at
origind cost lessaccumulated depreciation from date of purchase. Property, plant, and equipment acquired
after July 1, 1989, are recorded &t original cost at time of acquisition. After July 1, 2002, the Enterprise
Fund's minimum capitdization costs of $5,000. Prior to July 1, 2002, the Enterprise Fund did not have a
minimum capitaization cost. Plant assets of the County are depreciated on acomposite straight-line basis
for the entire plant, regardless of the year of acquisition, at a2% amnud rate. Inthe composterate, gain or
lossor digpostionisnot ca culated except in extraordinary circumstances. The cost of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materialy extend assets lives are not capitaized.

Capita assetsof the County are depreciated on astraight- linebasisover thefollowing estimated useful lives
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Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Years
Buildings 30to 50
Improvements 81010
Furniture and equipment 5to 10
Vehicles 5to 6
Computer equipment 3to 6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

Capital Assets (continued)

Capital assets of the Appa CART are depreciated over their useful liveson agraight-linebasisasfollows:

Years
Office furniture and equipment 5
Maintenance and shop 8
Vehicles 7-12
Land improvements 10

7. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financid statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financid
datements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the gpplicable
governmenta activities, busness-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

In the fund financia statementsfor governmenta fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
an other financing source.

8. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County and Appd CART provide for the accumulation of up to thirty days
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's government-wide
and proprietary funds and Appad CART, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the
sdlary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

Thedck leavepaliciesof the County and Appd CART providefor an unlimited accumulation of earned Sck
leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be
used in the determination of length of servicefor retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entitieshave
any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actualy taken, no accrud for Sck leave has been made
by the County or its component unit.

9. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Net assetsin government-wide and proprietary fund financia satementsare dlassfied asinvested in capitd
assets, net of related debt; redtricted; and unredtricted.  Restricted net assets represent congtraints on
resourcesthat areether a) externaly imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or lawsor regulations of
other governments or b) imposed by law through state statutes.

Summary of Sgnificant Accounting Policies (continued):

9. Net AssetsFund Balances (continued)

Fund Balances

Inthe governmenta fund financid statements, reservationsor restrictions of fund balance represent amounts
that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)(16)] restrictsthe appropriation of fund baance to an amount not to exceed the
sum of cash and investments minus the sum of lighilities, encumbrances and deferred revenues arising from
cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmenta fund types classfy fund baances asfollows
Reserved

Resarved for inventories— portion of fund balancenot available for appropriation becauseit represents
the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available resources.

Reserved for encumbrances — portion of fund balance availableto pay for any commitmentsrelated to
purchase orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved by State statue — portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and
reservesfor inventories, which isnot availablefor gppropriation under Statelaw [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This
amount is usudly comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables that are not offset by
deferred revenues.

Reserved for register of deeds — a portion of the fund baance condituting of the Automation
Enhancement and Preservation Fund is funded by 10% of the fees collected and maintained by the
regiser of deeds office. The funds are available for gppropriation but are legaly restricted for
computer and imaging technology in the register of deeds office.

Unreserved
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For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures — a portion of the tota fund baance is available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2006-2007 budget ordinance.

Undesignated — a portion of the tota fund baance is availablefor appropriation that isuncommitted at
year-end.

Note 1l - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

E. Reconciliation of Gover nment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
gover nment-wide statement of net assets

The government fund ba ance sheet includes reconciliation between fund ba ance—totd governmentd
funds and net assets — governmentd activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets. The net adjustment of $14,144,204 consigts of severa eements asfollows:

Description Amount

Capita assets used in governmenta activities are not financial resources
and are therefore not reported in the funds (tota capital assets on
government-wide Satement in governmentd activities column)

$ 52,060,273

Less accumulated depreciation (18,798,333)
The penson assats resulting from contributions in excess of the annud
required contribution are not financia resources and therefore are not
required in the funds 55,935
Accrued interest receivable less the amount claimed as unearned revenue
in the government-wide statements as these funds are not available and
therefore deferred in the fund Satements 31,664
Liabilities for revenue deferred but earned and therefore reported in the
fund statements but not the government-wide 493,292

22



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Deferred charges related to advance refunding bond issued— included on
government-wide statement of net assets but are not current financia
resources. 388,358

Liabilitiesthat, becausethey are not due and payablein the current period,
do not require current resources to pay and are therefore not reported in

the fund satements
Bonds and ingdlment financing (19,195,435)
Compensated absences (775,297)
Accrued interest payable (116,253)
Totd adjustment $ 14144204
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

E. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

2. Explanation of certain differ ences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changesin fund balance and the gover nment-wide statement of activities

The governmenta fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — totd governmentd funds and changes in net
assets of governmentd activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of activities. Thereare
severd dements of that total adjustment of $6,821,895 as follows:

Description Amount
Capita outlay expendituresrecorded in thefund satements but capitalized
as asts in the statement of activities $ 7,488,648

Depreciation expense, the dlocation of those assetsover their useful lives,
that isrecorded on the satement of activities but not in thefund satements

(1,201,181)
Losson disposa of assetsthat isrecorded in the statement of activitiesbut
not in the fund atements (1,316)
Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the
fund statements but again affect only the statement of net assets in the
government-wide 545,137
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Expensesreported on fund statementsthat are capitaized on government-
wide statements — bond issuance and refunding costs 79,609

The advance funding of pension obligations 8,315
Expensesreported in the statement of activitiesthat do not requiretheuse

of current resourcesto pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund

Satements.

Difference in interest expense between fund statements (modified
accrud) and government-wide statements (full accrud) 2,911

Amortization of refunding costs not recorded on fund statements (6,814)
Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide
gatements but not in the fund statements because they do not use
current resources
(41,461)

Notel - Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (continued):

E. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

2. Explanation of certain differences between the gover nmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditur es, and changesin fund balance and the gover nment-wide statement of activities

Revenuesreported in the satement of activitiesthat do not provide current
resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund satements:

Reversa of deferred tax revenue recorded at 7/1/05 (519,826)
Recording of tax receipts deferred in the fund Statements as of
6/30/06 493,292
Increase in accrued taxes receivable for year ended 6/30/06 (25,419)
Totd adjustment
$ 6,821,895
Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Material Violations of Finance-Rdated L egal and Contractual Provisions
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Note 3 -

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financia Statements
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2006

Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes

There were no instances of noncompliance with North Carolina Statutes.

Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits

All of the County'sand Appa CART's deposits are either insured or collateraized by using one of two
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, al deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance
coverageleve are collateraized with securitiesheld by the County'sand Appa CART's, agentsin these
units names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collaterd pool, dl uninsured depodts are
collateraized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of State Treasurer. Since
the State Treasurer isacting in afiduciary capacity for the County and Appa CART, these depostsare
consdered to be held by their agents in the entities names. The amount of the pledged collaterd is
based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actua current
balance for interest- bearing deposits.

Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

1. Deposits (continued)

Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled
collatera covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm thisinformation with the
County or the Appa CART under the Pooling Method, the potentia existsfor undercollaterization, and
thisrisk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina
enforces gtrict sandards of financid stability for each depository that collateraizes public depostsunder
the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2006, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $27,278,639 and abank bal ance of
$27,601,917. Of the bank balance, $300,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and
$20,351 in nor+interest bearing depositsand $27,281,566 ininterest bearing depositswere covered by
collaterd held under the Pooling Method.

The County has no formd policy regarding custodia credit risks for deposits, but relies on the State
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitdization for al pooling method finendd inditutionsand
to monitor them for compliance. The County complies with the provisons of G.S. 159-31 when
designating officid depositoriesand verifying that depositsare properly secured. The Appd CART has
no formal policy regarding custodid credit risk for deposits.
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At June 30, 2006 Watauga County had $1,800 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2006, the Appa CART's deposits had a balance of $370,441 and a bank baance of
$432,046. All of the bank baance was covered by federal depository insurance.

2. Investments
At June 30, 2006, the County's investments consisted of $1,013,906 in the North Carolina Capita
Management Trugst's Cash Portfolio, which carried acredit ratingaAAAmM by Standard & Poor’s. The
County has no policy on credit risk.
At June 30, 2006, the Appa CART'sinvestments consisted of $132,037 in the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust's Cash Portfolio. The Appa CART has no policy on credit risk.

3. Property Tax — Use—Value Assessment on Certain L ands

In accordance with the generd dtatutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the
County at the present-use vaue as opposed to market value. Whenthe property losesitsdigibility for
use-vaue taxation, the property tax is recomputed a market vaue for the current year and the three
preceding fiscd years, dong with the accrued interest from the origind duedate. Thistax isimmediately
dueand payable. Thefollowing are property taxesthat could become dueif present use-vauedighility
islogt. These amounts have not been recorded in the financid statements.

3. Property Tax — Use— Value Assessment on Certain L ands (continued)

Y ear
Levied Tax Interest Tota
2003 $ 507,376 143,334 650,710
2004 478,158 92,045 570,203
2005 481,800 49,385 531,185
2006 535,213 -- 535,213
Totd $ 2,002,547 284,764 2,287,311

4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Taxesand
Related Duefrom
Accrued Other
Accounts Interest Governments Total
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Governmentd Activities

Generd $ 1,177,628 1,029,255 2,176,616 4,383,499
Other Governmental 185,522 68,462 -- 253,984
Totd receivables 1,363,150 1,097,717 2,176,616 4,637,483
Allowance for doubtful accounts -- (437,847) -- 437,847)
Total-governmentd activities $ 1,363,150 659,870 2,176.616 4,199,636
Business-type activities
Solid Waste $ 311,234 15,542 326,776
Allowance for doubtful accounts -- - -- --
Total-business-type activities $ 311234 - 15,542 326,776
The due from other governments that is owed to the County conssts of the following:
Local option sales tax $ 1,796,356
Scrap tire tax 11,276
White goods tax 4,266
Crimina Justice Partnership Program 18,956
Daycare 62,253
County Adminigtration 270,608
Foster Care 4,017
Adoption Assstance 2,612
Government Crime Commissons 1,341
NWNC Methamphetamine Grant 20,473
Tota $ 2,192,158
5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as follows.
Beginning Ending
Baances Increases Decreases  Baances
Governmentd activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5496,312 3,647,719 -- 9,144,031
Congtruction in progress 6,140,803 3,016,916 -- 9,157,719
Tota capitd assets not being depreciated 11,637,115 6,664,635 -- 18,301,750
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 29,185,826 -- -- 29,185,826
Other improvements 95,201 -- -- 95,201
Equipment 2,038,971 519,992 -- 2,558,963
Vehicles and motor eguipment 1,641,272 304,020 _ 26,759 1,918,533
Total capital assats being depreciated 32,961,270 824,012 _ 26,759 33,758,523
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Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 15,338,269 801,958 -- 16,140,227
Improvements 22,766 4,345 -- 27,111
Equipment 1,292,827 194,927 -- 1,487,754
Vehicles and motor equipment 968,733 199,951 25443 1,143,241
Total accumulated depreciation 17,622,595 1,201,181 25,443 18,798,333
Tota capitd assets being depreciated, net 15,338,675 14,960,190
Governmentd activity capitd assets, net $ 26,975,790 33,261,940

Primary Gover nment

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Generd government $ 109,650

Public safety 311,892

Education 1,015

Economic and physica development 55,465

Human sarvices 607,742

Culturd and recregtiona 115417

Total depreciation expense $ 1201181

5. Capital Assets (continued)
Beginning Ending
Badances Increases Decreases  Balances
Busness-type activities
Capita assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,377,212 -- -- 1,377,212
Condtruction in progress 1,902,689 260,941 2,122,714 40,916
Totd capital assets not being depreciated 3,279,901 260,941 2,122,714 1,418,128
Capital assets being depreciated:

Improvements 470,081 -- -- 470,081
Buildings 877,367 2,122,714 -- 3,000,081
Equipment 1,098,161 -- -- 1,098,161
Vehides 1,190,988 -- -- 1,190,988
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Tota capital assets being depreciated 3,636,597 2,122,714 -- 5,759,311
L ess accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements 284,036 9,679 -- 293,715
Buildings 221,830 38,774 -- 260,604
Equipment 1,025,013 28,642 -- 1,053,655
Vehides 737,783 100,903 -- 838,686
Tota accumulated depreciation 2,268,662 177,998 -- 2,446,660
Tota capital assets being depreciated, net 1,367,935 3,312,651
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 4,647,836 4,730,779

Congtruction commitments

The government has active congtruction projects as of June 30, 2006. The projectsinclude anew law
enforcement facility, a new administration building, an addition to the existing courthouse. At June 30,
2006, the government's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Law enforcement facility 6,295,723 89,758
Adminigration building 2,011,976 183,079
Courthouse addition 850,020 2,300,932
Totd $9,157,719 $ 2,573,769

Discretely presented component units

Actively for the Appa CART for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Baances Increases Decreases Balances
Capita assets not being depreciated:
Lad $ 1,114,242 -- -- 1,114,242
Congtruction in progress 51,061 50,924 -- 101,985
Tota capita assets not being depreciated 1,165,303 50,924 -- 1,216,227
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Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements 159,662 -- -- 159,662
Office furniture and equipment 111,979 2,138 10,987 103,130
Vehicles 3,135,776 1,072,857 387,882 3,820,751
Shop equipment 114,862 -- -- 114,862
Total capita assets being depreciated 3,522,279 1,074,995 398,869 4,198,405
L ess accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 115,360 10,177 -- 125,537
Office furniture and equipment 85,350 9,248 10,987 83,611
Vehicles 1,505,148 323,399 373,207 1,455,340
Shop equipment 95,751 5,246 -- 100,997
Total accumulated depreciation 1,801,609 348,070 384,194 1,765,485
Tota capital assets being depreciated, net 1,720,670 2,432,920
Appa CART capita assts, net $ 2,885,973 3,649,147
B. Liabilities
1. Payables
Payables at the government-wide level a June 30, 2006, were as follows:
Sdaiesand  Accrued
Vendors Bendfits Interest  Other Tota
Governmentd activities:

Generd $ 980,945 -- 116,253 -- 1,097,198

Other governmenta 54,863 -- -- -- 54,863

Tota-governmentd activities 1,035,808 __-- 116253 _ -- 1152061

Business-type activities
Solid Waste $_275,881 -- -- -- 275,881

2. Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees Retirement System

Plan Description. Watauga County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees

Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

Retirement System (LGERS), a cogt-dhaing multiple-employer defined benefit penson plan
adminigtered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS providesretirement and disability benefitsto plan
membersand beneficiaries. Article3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assgnsthe authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina Assembly. The Loca Governmental Employees Retirement
System is included in the Comprehensive Annud Financid Report (CAFR) for the State of North
Cadlina. The State's CAFR includesfinancid statements and required supplementary information for
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LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mall
Service Center, Raeigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by caling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annud covered sdary.
The County isrequired to contribute at an actuarialy determined rate. For the County, the current rate
for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officersis 4.96% and 4.78%,
respectively, of annua covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of Watauga
County are established and may be amended by the North Carolina Generd Assembly. The County's
contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were $968,939,
$868,194, and $809,902, respectively. The contributions made by the County equaled the required
contributions for each yeer.

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separ ation Allowance

1. Plan Description

Watauga County adminigters a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a
angle-employer defined benefit penson plan that providesretirement benefitsto the County's qudified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equa to .85 percent of the annud
equivaent of the base rate of compensation most recently gpplicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
alowancesthat may be authorized by the Generd Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assgns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisonsto the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Separation Allowance is reported in the County's report as afiduciary fund.

All full-time County law enforcement officersare covered by the Separation Allowance. At December
31, 2006, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of :

Retirees recaiving benefits 3
Active plan members 37
Total 40

2. Contributions

The County isrequired by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and
has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based
on actuaria valuations. There were no contributions made by employees.

Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

The County's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North
CarolinaGenerd Assembly. Adminigtration costs of the Separation Allowance are paid by the County.

Theannua required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2006
actuarid vauation usng the projected unit credit actuaria cost method. The actuarid assumptions
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included (8) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of adminisirative expenses) and (b) projected sdary
increases of 4.5%t0 12.3% per year. Both (&) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The
assumptions did not include pogtretirement benefits increases. The actuarid vaue of assets was
determined usng the market vadue of investments. The unfunded actuarid accrued lidbility is being
amortized as aleve percentage of projected payrolls on aclosed basis. The remaining amortization
period at December 31, 2006 was 25 years.

3 Year Trend Information

For Year Ended  Annud Penson Cogt Percentage of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2004 $ 30,398 131.72 % $ (34,862
2005 30,251 142.17 (47,620)
2006 30,245 127.49 (55,935)

c. Supplemental Retirement |ncome Plan for L aw Enfor cement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplementa Retirement Income Plan, a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and aBoard of Trustees.
ThePlan providesretirement benefitsto law enforcement officersemployed by the County. Article5 of
G.S. Chapter 135 assgnsthe authority to establish and amend benefit provisionsto the North Carolina
Generd Assambly.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 required the County to contribute each month an
amount equa to five percent of each officer's sdary, and al amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.

Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2006 were $73,733, which consisted of $65,887 from the
County and $7,846 from the law enforcement officers.

d. Supplemental Retirement |ncome Plansfor General Employees

Employees, other than law enforcement, have the choice of participating in a 401(k) plan or a 457
deferred compensation plan. The County contributes 5.0 percent of each employee ssalary totheplan
of their choice. Employeesmay make e ective deferrasto each plan. Contributionsfor the year ended
June 30, 2006 to these plans were $614,213, which consisted of $440,308 from the County and
$173,905 from employess.

e. Registersof Deeds Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Watauga County aso contributes to the Register of Deeds Supplementd
Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

Penson Fund, a noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina
Department of State Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefitsto any digible county
register of deedswho isretired under the Local Government Employees Retirement System (LGERS)
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or an equivaent locally sponsored plan. Article3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assgnsthe authority to establish
and amend benefit provisons to the North Carolina Generd Assembly.

Funding Policy. On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an
amount equd to four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article
1 of G.S. 161. Immediatey following January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer
divides ninety-three percent (93%) of theamount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year
into equal sharesto be disbursed as monthly benefits. Theremaining seven percent (7%) of the Fund's
assetsmay be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For thefiscal year ended June 30,
2006, the County's required and actua contributions were $22,223.

f. Other Post Employment Benefits— Watauga County

Health Benefits

The County has eected to dlow retiring employeesto extend their hedlth insurance coverage up to the
time when they become dligible for Medicare coverage. This policy came into effect September 1,
2001. For employess retiring with a minimum of 10 years sarvice under the Locd Government
Retirement System with at least the last 5 years with the County, the employee may extend higher
hedlth insurance coverage, but is fully responsble for the premium. With a minimum of 20 years of
service, the employee can maintain the hed th insurance coverage, and the County will pay the lesser of
$300 or 75% of the monthly premium. With a minimum of 25 years of service, the employee can
maintain coverage and the County will pay the lesser of $400 or 100% of the monthly premium. If the
employee choosesto makethiseection, it must be made before the employee's actud retirement date.
The employee is expected to enroll in Medicare when digible, and has the option to remain with the
hedlth insurance plan for 30 days after becoming eligible for Medicare.

Death Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to dl digible employees through the Deeth Benefit
Plan for members of the Local Governmenta Employees Retirement System (Deeth Benefit Plan), a
multiple-employer, State administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The
beneficiaries of those employeeswho diein active service after oneyear of contributing membershipin
the System, or who diewithin 180 days after retirement or termination of service have at least oneyear
of contributing membership sarvice in the System &t the time of desth are digible for death benefits.
Lump sum degth benefit paymentsto beneficiaries are equd to theemployee's 12 highest monthssdary
in arow during the 24 months prior to the employee's degth, but the benefit may not be less than
$25,000 and no morethan $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan.
The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are
determined asa
Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

percentage of monthly payrolls, based upon rates established annuadly by the State. Becausethe benefit
payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine
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the number of digible participants. For the fiscd year ended June 30, 2006, the County made
contributions to the State for death benefits of $13,916. The County's required contributions for
employees represented .14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributionsto the Death Benefit
Plan cannot be separated between the post employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

. Retirement System — Appal CART

The Appd CART retirement planisamoney purchase plan through Jefferson Filot Pension Life. Each
employee who works 1,000 hours in the fiscd year will be digible for an 8.25% of gross pay
contributionintheretirement system. The vesting schedule after working 1,000 hoursin each plan year
isasfollows

Years of Sarvice Percent Vested
2 40%
3 60
4 80
5 or more 100

Thisrate of contribution is subject to change due to funding congraints. The contribution requirement
for June 30, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $68,939 and $51,125, respectively. Payments of $42,040
and $39,455 were made for each fisca year, respectively.

. Groundwater Contamination/L andfill Closure

In March 1993, the County’ s engineers found groundwater contamination at the County’ s landfill Site
which exceeded State and Federd maximum contaminant levels for some congtituents. On April 8.
1994, the County stopped accepting municipal solid waste at the County’s landfill, and closure
procedures were initiated. The County’s engineers developed an assessment plan, which was
approved by the NCDEHNR Solid Waste Management Division, to determine the extent, nature, and
source of the contamination. The County ingdled groundwater monitoring wells in and around the
landfill property to test for the presence of possible contaminants. On January 12, 1996, the County’ s
engineersissued aRemedid Investigation and Alternative Report which proposed aremedid cap with
some supplementa steps (including some continued assessment monitoring activities). In February
1996, the Board of Commissionersapproved theengineer’ sproposa with some adjustmentsbased on
public comment. The County, after advertisement and bidding, awarded acontract for construction of
the cap in May 1996. The gpproximate cost to date of the assessment and emedid cap is
$2,700,000. Thecapping project iscompleteand groundwater conditionsremain stable. Groundwater
testing continues, as required by NCDENR. Also, due to NCDENR directive, in fiscd year

2004/2005, a methane collection system was indtaled to prevent the potentia for offste migration.

Further remedid actions are not anticipated unless groundwater conditions change.

Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)
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4. Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The baance in deferred and unearned revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the
government-wide statements at year-end is composed of the following dements:

Unearned or Full Accrud
Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) $ 22,916 157,748
Prepaid user fees not yet earned (Enterprise) 153,934 153,934
Taxesreceivable, net (Generd) 573,499 --
Taxes receivable, net (Specid Revenue) 54,625 --
Prepaid revenue 9,675 9,675
Tota $ 814,649 321,357

5. Risk Management

The County isexposed to various risks of lossesrelated to torts; theft of, damageto, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and naturd disasters. The County participatesin
three sdf-funded risk-financing pools administered by the North Carolina Association of County

Commissioners. Through these, pools, the County obtains property coverage equa to replacement
cost values of owned property subject to alimit of $125.5 million for any one occurrence, generd, ato,
professiond, and employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physica

damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence,
workers compensation coverage up to the satutory limits, and hedlth insurance for county employees.
The pools are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financid satementsare
availableto the County upon request. Two of the poolsarereinsured through amulti- state public entity
captivefor single occurrence lossesin excess of $500,000 up to a$2 million limit for ligbility coverage,
$600,000 of aggregate annual lossesin excess of $50,000 per occurrence for property, auto physical

damage, and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers compensation.
For hedth insurance, the county isreinsured through the Pool for individua lossesin excess of $50,000
and aggregate annual losses in excess of 115% of expected clams. The podl is reinsured through

commercid cariersfor individua lossesin excess of $100,000.

The County carries flood insurance through the National FHood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Becausethe
County is an area of the State that has been mapped an “A” area (an area close to ariver, lake or
stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County isdigibleto purchase coverage of
$500,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County aso is digible to and has purchased
commercid flood insurance for another $692,000 for certain flood-prone structures. The County
carries flood insurance to avoid possible Sgnificant loss,
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Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

5. Risk Management (continued)

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’ s employees that have access to $100 or more a any
given time of the County’s funds are performance bonded through a commercid surety bond. The
Finance Director, Tax Adminigtrator, and County Manager are each individualy bonded for $50,000
each.

The County carries commercid coverage for dl other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductionsin insurance coverage from the previous year and settled clams have not exceeded coverage
in any of the past three fiscd years.

Appa CART isexposed to variousrisks of lossrelated to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assats, errors and omissions,; injuries to employees, naturd disasters, and medicd mdpractice. The
AppadCART carries commercia insurance for these risks of loss. There have been no sgnificant
reductionsin insurance coveragefrom the previousyear and settled claimshave not exceeded coverage
in any of the past three fiscd years.

. Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2006, the County was a defendant in various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County's
management and the County attorney, the ultimate effect of these lega matterswill not have amaterid
adverse effect on the County's financid pogtion.

. Long-term Obligations

. Capital L eases

The County has no capita |ease agreements.

I nstallment Purchase

As authorized by State law [G.S.160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County financed various property
acquisitions during previous years by ingtdlment purchase. The ingadlment purchases were issued
pursuant to security agreementsthat requirethat legd title remain with the County aslong asthe debt is
outstanding.

The County has four ingalment purchases serviced by the generd fund. Thefirg ingalment purchase
was executed on November 1, 1997, for the construction and renovation of the Human Services
Center and requires sixty quarterly principal and interest payments of $72,318.

The second ingtadlment purchase was executed on December 1, 1998 for the renovation of the East
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Annex Building, and the congtruction of the new Watauga County Health Department, and requires
forty quarterly principa and interest payments of $51,219.

Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

7. Long-term Obligations (continued)

b. Ingallment Purchase (continued)

Thethird instalment purchase was executed on April 30, 2004 for the renovation of existing structures
to house the County’s Law Enforcement Center. This ingtalment purchase requires 60 quarterly
principal payments of $83,333 plusinterest at 3.24 percent.

The fourth installment purchase was executed on November 3, 2005, for the Brookshire Land. This
ingalment purchase requires five annua payments of $344,071 which includes interest a 4.75%.

The County aso has one ingalment purchase serviced by the Solid Waste Fund.  The ingtdlment
purchase was executed on September 15, 2004 for the purchase of equipment and requires twelve
quarterly payments of $24,753 which includes interest at 2.60% compounded quarterly.

For Watauga County, the future minimum payments as of June 30, 2006, including $1,403,300 of

interest, are:

Governmentd Activities Business Activities

Y ear Ending June 30 Principa Interest  Principd  Interest
2007 $ 1,014,205 293,698 94,322 4,692
2008 1,047,584 249,518 96,799 2,216
2009 979,216 204,290 24,520 159
2010 906,129 164,497 -- --
2011 934,769 125,058 -- --
2012-2016 1,808,530 306,522 -- --
2017-2021 1,000,000 52,650 -- --

Principa payments $ 7690433 215,641

Totd interest payments $ 1,396,233 7,067

c. General Obligation | ndebtedness

All generd obligation bonds serviced by the County's generd fund are collateralized by the full faith,
credit, and taxing power of the County. Principal and interest payments are gppropriated when due.
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Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

7. Long-term Obligations (continued)

c. General Obligation | ndebtedness (continued)

The County's generd obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2006 are comprised of the following
individud issues:

Serviced by the County's General Fund:

$7,500,000 1993 School Facility Serial Bonds, due in semi-annua
installments through June 1, 2014; interest at 4.40 percent $ 3,000,000

$6,425,000 2001 Genera Obligation Bond Refunding, duein
semi-annua ingtalments through June 1, 2015; interest at 3.00-4.25

percent 4,690,000
$4,275,000 Generd Obligation Bond Refunding, duein semi-
annud ingdlments through June 1, 2015; interest at 2.0-3.5 percent 3,815,000

Tota $ 11,505,000

Annua debt service requirements to maturity for the County's generd obligation bonds are asfollows:

Governmentd Activities
Year Ending
June 30 Principa Interest
2007 $ 1,385,000 438,055
2008 1,365,000 391,905
2009 1,350,000 344,027
2010 1,335,000 294,003
2011 1,275,000 242,728
2012-2016 4,795,000 471,237
Tota $ 11,505,000 2,181,955

At June 30, 2006, Watauga County had alegal debt margin of $458,004,741.
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Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

7. Long-term Obligations (continued)

d. Advance Refunding

In December 2001, the County issued $6,425,000 of generd obligation advance refunding bonds to
provide resourcesto purchase U.S. Government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for
the purpose of generd resourcesfor al future debt service payments of $5,900,000 generd obligation
bonds. As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be deceased and the ligbility has been
removed from the governmenta activities column of the Satement of net assets. Thisadvancerefunding
was undertaken to reduce total debt service paymentsover thenext 11 yearsby $282,135 and resulted
in an economic gain of $231,604.

In April 2004, the County issued $4,275,000 of genera obligation advance refunding bondsto provide
resources to purchase U.S. government securities that were placed into an irrevocable trust for the
purpose of generating resources for al future debt service payments of $3,950,000 genera obligation
bonds. The refunding debt condsts of $3,950,000 1995 School Fecility Serid Bonds (partidly

refunded for the maturitiesin the years 2005-2015). Asaresult the refunded bonds are considered to
be defeased and theliability has been removed from the governmentd activities column of the datement
of net assats. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the
next 11 years by $293,305 and resulted in an economic gain of $279,411.

. Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following isasummary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscd year
ended June 30, 2006:

Current
Baance Bdance Portion of

Governmentd activities. July 1, 2006 Increases  Decreases  June 30, 2006 Bdance
Generd obligation debt $ 12,915,000 -- 1,410,000 11,505,000 1,385,000
Installment purchases 6,911,995 1,500,000 721,560 7,690,435 1,014,205

Compensated absences 733,836 827,257 785,924 775,169 --
Tota governmentd activities $ 20,560,831 2,327,257 2,917,484 19,970,604 2,399,205

Busness-type activities

Ingtalment purchases $ 307,602 -- 91,961 215,641 94,322
Compensated absences 41,489 39,373 30,027 50,835 --
Tota business-type activities $ 349,091 39,373 121,988 266,476 94,322
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Discretely presented component units:
Compensated absences $ 40,259 41,627 35,423 46,463 -

Compensated absencestypically have been liquidated in the genera fund and are accounted for ona
LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

7. Long-term Obligations (continued)

C. Interfund Balances and Activity

Trandfers toffrom other funds

Trangfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2006, consists of the following:
From the Generd fund to the Capital Reserve fund to accumulate
resources for future capital acquisitions $ 4,187,858

From the Specid Revenue fund to the Generd fund to reimburse
For an expense paid 69,109

From the Capital Reserve fund to the Generad fund for the new
congtruction projects 3,390,984

From the Generd fund to the Solid Waste fund to supplement
other funding sources 351,554

From the Solid Waste fund to the Debt Service fund for debt service
payments owed to the Generd fund 88,986

From the Genera fund to the Law Enforcements Capita Projects
fund for congtruction projects 506,717

From the Capital Reserve fund to the Law Enforcement Capita Projects

fund for congtruction projects 78,694
Tota $ 8.673.902
Note 4 - Joint Ventures

The County participatesin ajoint venture to operate Appa achian Regiond Library with two other loca
governments. Each participating government gppoints four board membersto the twel ve- member Board of
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the Library. The County has an ongoing financia responghility for thejoint venture because the Library's
continued existence depends on the parti cipating governments continued funding. None of the participating
governments have any equity interest inthe Library, So no equity interest has been reflected in the financid
gatementsat June 30, 2006. 1n accordance with theintergovernmentd agreement between the participating
governments, the County appropriated $414,435 to the Library to supplement its activities. Complete
financid satementsfor the Library can be obtained from the Library's offices a 148 Library Drive, West
Jefferson, NC 28694.

Joint Ventures (continued)

The County, in conjunction with Ashe and Alleghany Counties, participatesin ajoint ventureto operatethe
Appaachian Didrict Hedth Department. Each participating government appoints one board member to the
Governing Board and they in turn gppoint the other members of the Governing Board. None of the
participating governments have any equity interest in the Health Department, So no equity interest has been
reflected inthefinancid statementsat June 30, 2006. 1n accordance with theintergovernmenta agreement
between the participating governments, the County appropriated $504,838 to the Hedlth Department to
supplement itsactivities. Completefinancid statementsfor the Hedth Department can be obtained from the
Hedlth Department's offices at 126 Poplar Grove Connector Road, Boone, NC 28607.

The County aso participatesin ajoint venture to operate New River Behaviora Hedth Center with four
other locd governments. Each participating governmenta gppoints one County Commissioner to the
Governing Board and they in turn appoint the other members. None of the participating governments have
any equity interest in the Behaviorad Hedth Center Department, so no equity interest has been reflected in
thefinancid statementsat June 30, 2006. In accordancewith theintergovernmenta agreement betweenthe
partici pating governments, the County appropriated $212,687 to the Behaviora Health Care Department to
supplement itsactivities. Completefinancia statementsfor the Behavioral Health Care Department can be
obtained at 895 State Farm Road, Suite 508, Boone, NC 28607.

Jointly Governed Organization

The County communaly governs Cddwdl Community College and Technicd Inditute with one other
government and the community college system of the State of North Carolina. The County appointstwo
members of itsfourteen members Board of Trustees. 1n accordance with theintergovernmentd agreement
between the partici pating governments, the County appropriated $655,408 to Ca dwell Community College
and Technicd Institute to supplement its activities. Complete financiad statements for the College can be
obtained at 2855 Hickory Boulevard, Hudson, NC, 28638.
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Benefit Payments|ssued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individud recipients by the State from federd and State
moneys. County personne areinvolved with certain functions, primerily eigibility determinationsthet cause
benefit paymentsto beissued by the State. These amounts disclosethisadditiona aidto County recipients
that do not appear in the basic financid statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the
County.

Federal State
Temporary assistance to needy families $ 126,060 --
Medicaid 15,623,017 7,402,516
Food stamp program 1,887,718 --
Energy assstance 43,274 --
Adoption assistance 140,708 40,589
Adoption subsidy -- 24,222
Adult assstance -- 159,498
TitleIV-E, foster care 82,786 13,376
Tota $ 17,903,563 7,640,201

Summary Disclosur e of Significant Commitments and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from severd federa and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants
are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management
believes that any required refunds will be immaterid. No provison has been made in the accompanying
financid gtatements for the refund of grant moneys.

Interest on Unpaid M otor Vehicle Taxes

In 2005, the North CarolinaGenerd Assembly enacted House Bill #1779, which increased thefirst month
interest due on delinquent motor vehicletaxesfrom 2 percent to 5 percent, beginning January 1, 2006. The
additiona interest wasto be collected by the countieswhich levied the taxes and remitted to the Department
of State Treasurer the 10" of every month, for use by the Division of Motor Vehiclesto creste acombined
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registration and collection syslem. Dueto theimmeateridity of the amounts collected, the County has chosen
not to establish an agency fund, but to include the amounts due in accounts payable.

The following reports the tota collections and disbursements of the interest collected by Watauga County
for the fiscdl year ending June 30, 2006:

Totd interest collected: $ 3462
Totd interest remitted 2,201
Amount due to Department of State Treasurer

as of June 30, 2006 $ 1261
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Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule 1

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Value of Liability (AAL) Unfunded
Actuarial Reserved Projected Unit AAL
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL)
Date (a) (b) (b-a)
12/31/2000 65,840 237,850 172,010
12/31/2001 75,840 282,522 206,682
12/31/2002 85,840 334,449 248,609
12/31/2003 95,840 330,741 234,901
12/31/2004 105,840 318,853 213,013
12/31/2005 121,075 314,210 193,135

42

Covered UAAL as a
Funded Payroll for Year % of Covered
Ratio Ending on Val Date Payroll
(a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
27.68 809,782 21.24
26.84 832,870 24.82
25.67 1,015,925 24.47
28.98 1,025,616 22.90
33.19 1,089,341 19.55
38.53 1,320,159 14.63



Schedule 2
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Reserved
2000 $ 15,150 66.01 %
2001 15,203 65.78
2002 24,419 40.95
2003 27,067 36.95
2004 30,843 32.42
2005 30,962 32.30
2006 32,874 30.42
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Watauga County
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedule 3
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to the Required Schedules

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date 12/31/05

Actuarial cost method Project unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 25 years

Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25%

Projected salary increases 45 -12.3%
Includes inflation at 3.75%

Cost of living adjustments N/A
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Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Taxes - ad valorem:
Current year $ 22,743,850
Prior years 370,794
Advertising and interest 119,170
Total Taxes - ad valorem 22,470,083 23,233,814 763,731
Local Option Sales Taxes:
Article 39 and 44 7,620,290
Article 40 one-half of one percent 1,865,610
Article 42 one-half of one percent 1,841,446
Total Taxes - Local Option Sales 11,283,996 11,327,346 43,350
Taxes - other:
Real estate transfer tax 781,257
Animal tax 887
ABC - .05/bottle 18,047
Gross receipts tax - county 30,278
Other 249,792
Total Taxes - other 675,500 1,080,261 404,761
Unrestricted intergov. rev.:
Payments in lieu of taxes 13,276
Total Unrestricted intergov. rev. 12,500 13,276 776
Restricted intergov. revenues:
Grants-Federal & State 3,964,650
Public School Facility Funds -
POA-Town of Boone 6,000
Court facilities fees 189,970
Total Restricted intergov. revenues 4,607,762 4,160,620 (447,142)
Permits and fees:
Gun permits 14,722
Serving civil summons 39,656
Jail and officer fees 34,866
Drug fees awarded by court -
Planning and inspection fees 334,766
Marriage license 9,653
Register of deeds fees 477,548
Fire inspection fees 10,792
Total Permits and fees 836,512 922,003 85,491
Sales and service:
POA In-home svc. - soc. serv. 15,339
Recreation department revenues 368,276
Sales of tax maps 686
Data processing fees 309
Rich Mtn. antenna rental -
Copy revenue 13,471
Tax collection fees-Towns 78,010
Jail medical service 11,396
Other 99,926
Total Sales and service 547,757 587,413 39,656
Investment earnings:
Interest earned on investments 312,500 677,597 365,097
Donations : 1,000,981 1,009,506 8,525
Miscellaneous: 167,976 190,009 22,033
TOTAL REVENUES 41,915,567 43,201,845 1,286,278
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EXPENDITURES:
General Government
Governing body:
Operating expenses

Administration:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Administration

Finance:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses

Total Finance

Tax Supervisor:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Tax Supervisor

Tax Revaluation:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses

Total Tax Revaluation

Legal Services:
Operating expenses

Court facilities:
Operating expenses

Elections:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Elections

Register of Deeds:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Register of Deeds

General administration:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total General administration

Information technologies:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Information technologies
Maintenance:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses

Capital Outlay

Total Maintenance

Watauga County, North Carolina

General Fund
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006

Statement 1(Page 2 of 6)

Budget

57,049

366,989

437,566

1,231,457

268,074

44,776

10,431

330,944

468,138

4,614,550

651,257

1,040,333
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Actual

46,662

311,701
49,406
1,919

363,026
308,176

70,821
378,997
900,130

99,062
38,190

1,037,382

68,261
134,257

202,518

44,775

8,545

148,035
100,347
33,141
281,523
327,007
57,505
13,670

398,182

525,179

3,664,182

4,189,361

237,028
196,696
134,421

568,145
947,600
39,415

6,536

993,551

Variance

10,387

3,963

58,569

194,075

65,556

1,886

49,421

69,956

425,189

83,112

46,782



Public Buildings
Courthouse:
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Courthouse

East Courthouse Annex:
Operating expenses

Administration Building:
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Administration Building

Emergency Management:
Operating expenses

Hannah:
Operating expenses

Animal Shelter:
Operating expenses

Old Cove Creek School:
Operating expenses

New Health Department:
Operating expenses

Public Building-APPALCART:
Operating expenses

New Library:
Operating expenses

Caldwell College & Tech. Inst:
Operating expenses

Watauga Comm. Center:
Operating expenses

New Law Enforcement Center:
Operating expenses
Capaital outlay
Total New Law Enforcement Center
Law Enforcement Center:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Law Enforcement Center

West Courthouse Annex:
Operating expenses

Human Services Center:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Human Service Center

Appalachian Enterprise Center:
Operating expenses

Recreation Administration Center:
Operating expenses

Aquatics Center:
Operating expenses

Watauga County, North Carolina

General Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 1(Page 3 of 6)
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2006
Budget Actual Variance
144,133
593,340
3,087,988 737,473 2,350,515
29,506 20,616 8,890
22,741
438,579
780,001 461,320 318,681
1,550 37 1,513
11,614 10,344 1,270
6,114 5,244 870
24,940 12,651 12,289
50,177 47,629 2,548
2,675 2,531 144
156,981 152,582 4,399
12,900 8,971 3,929
34,199 12,104 22,095
57,415
18,071
1,479,078 75,486 1,403,592
32,397
3,888
37,359 36,285 1,074
23,629 21,966 1,663
59,806
3,325
68,079 63,131 4,948
26,193 9,076 17,117
4,116 1,585 2,531
137,534 120,396 17,138



Watauga County, North Carolina

General Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

Opt./Maintenance Facility:
Operating expenses

Recreation Fields/Parks:
Operating expenses

Brookshire Park:
Operating expenses

Total Public Buildings
Total General Government

Public Safety
Sheriff's department:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Sheriff's department

Communications:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses

Total Communications

321 Speed Reduction:
Salaries and benefits

NW Methamphetamine Task Force:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total NW Methamphetamine Task Force

Governor's Crime Commission:
Salaries and benefits

COPS Programs:
Operating expenses

Jail:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Jail

Emerg. Mgt. & Fire Protect.:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Emerg. Mgt. & Fire Protect.
Planning and Inspections:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Planning and Inspections

Medical examiner:
Operating expenses

Ambulance and rescue squad:
Operating expenses

FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 1(Page 4 of 6)
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2006
Budget Actual Variance
32,158 28,327 3,831
27,658 20,114 7,544
23,687 18,781 4,906
6,058,136 1,866,649 4,191,487
15,579,700 10,379,316 5,200,384
1,788,406
313,013
200,882
2,374,082 2,302,301 71,781
337,381
13,998
420,725 351,379 69,346
42,644 42,643 1
39,686
2,694
11,647
116,616 54,027 62,589
30,000 30,000 -
5,874 5,857 17
892,814
465,336
16,284
1,607,336 1,374,434 232,902
190,318
383,683
27,566
723,182 601,567 121,615
499,896
83,985
19,095
720,857 602,976 117,881
23,500 18,700 4,800
850,748 850,748 -



Statement 1(Page 5 of 6)

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006
Budget Actual Variance
Animal control:

Salaries and benefits 132,109

Operating expenses 17,890

Capital outlay 16,800

Total Animal control 174,130 166,799 7,331
Forestry:

Operating expenses 38,648 38,648 -
Total Public Safety 7,128,342 6,440,079 688,263
Economic & Physical Development

Elderly & Disabled Transportation:

Operating expenses 129,517 108,578 20,939
Special Appropriations: 410,078 401,358 8,720
Economic Development:

Operating expenses 55,000 38,212 16,788
Cooperative extension:

Salaries and benefits 152,145

Operating expenses 15,944

Total Cooperative extension 187,750 168,089 19,661
Soil conservation:

Salaries and benefits 84,425

Operating expenses 8,150

Capital Outlay 1,440

Total Soil conservation 97,780 94,015 3,765
Total Economic & Physical Development 880,125 810,252 69,873
Human Services

Public health:

Operating expenses 504,838 504,838 -
Mental health:

Operating expenses 300,129 303,726 (8,597)
Social services - admin.:

Salaries and benefits 2,170,048

Operating expenses 318,033

Total Social services - admin. 2,480,761 2,488,081 (7,320)

Beneficiary payments: 2,129,109 1,861,708 267,401
State foster care and daycare

Room & Board 6,015

Other 142

Purchase-daycare XX 854,120

Total State foster care and daycare 904,660 860,277 44,383

Project on aging:

Salaries and benefits 1,115,966

Operating expenses 255,623

Capital Outlay 3,826

Total Project on aging 1,413,805 1,375,415 38,390

Veterans service officer:

Salaries and benefits 122,212

Operating expenses 2,554

Total Veterans service officer 115,811 124,766 (8,955)
Total Human Services 7,849,113 7,518,811 330,302
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Statement 1(Page 6 of 6)

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006
Budget Actual Variance
Education

Public Schools - current 9,076,117

Public Schools - capital outlay 1,402,511

Community College - current 655,408

Community College - capital outlay 8,500
Total Education 11,452,124 11,142,536 309,588
Cultural and recreational

Library:
Operating expenses 421,935 414,435 7,500
Recreation:

Salaries and benefits 475,403

Operating expenses 122,872

Capital Outlay 4,496

Total Recreation 635,266 602,771 32,495

Aquatics:

Salaries and benefits 182,261

Operating expenses 17,233

Capital Outlay 6,107

Total Aquatics 218,473 205,601 12,872
Recreation - Maintenance:

Operating expenses 10,780 9,920 860
Total Cultural and recreational 1,286,454 1,232,727 53,727
Debt Service

Principal retirement 2,131,560

Interest & fees 735,132
Total Debt Service 2,867,709 2,866,692 1,017
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,043,567 40,390,413 6,653,154

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures (5,128,000) 2,811,432 7,939,432

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Loan proceeds 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
Transfers to other funds (5,046,129) (5,046,129) -
Transfers from other funds 3,562,321 3,549,079 (13,242)
Fund balance appropriated 5,111,808 - (5,111,808)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 5,128,000 2,950 (5,125,050)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures & other sources (uses) $ - 2,814,382 2,814,382
Fund balances at beginning of year 18,331,705
Fund balances at end of year $ 21,146,087
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Statement 2
Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Fund
Total Law Enforcement Total
Substance E-911 CDBG Lance Creek Nonmajor Center Nonmajor Total
Abuse Telephone Fire Disaster Housing Stream CDBG CDBG Governmental Capital Capital Nonmajor
Tax Surcharge Districts Revaluation Relief Rehabilitation Restoration  Rehabilitation Urgent Revenue Projects Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Grant Needs Funds Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,089 446,389 23,603 2,604 - 2,071 61,239 - - 632,995 12,355 12,355 645,350
Accounts receivable, net - 52,839 -- -- 89,787 -- - 27,000 15,896 185,522 -- - 185,522
Taxes receivable, net -- -- 54,708 -- -- -- -- -- -- 54,708 -- -- 54,708
Total assets $ 97,089 499,228 78,311 2,604 89,787 2,071 61,239 27,000 15,896 873,225 12,355 12,355 885,580
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 617 14,401 22,890 - - 2,071 - - 14,884 54,863 - - 54,863
Deferred revenue -- -- 55,421 -- -- -- -- -- -- 55,421 -- -- 55,421
Due to other funds - - -- -- 89,787 -- - 27,000 1,012 117,799 -- - 117,799
Total Liabilities 617 14,401 78,311 -- 89,787 2,071 - 27,000 15,896 228,083 -- - 228,083
Fund Balances:
Reserved by state statue -- 52,839 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 52,839 -- -- 52,839
Unreserved 96,472 431,988 -- 2,604 - -- 61,239 - - 592,303 12,355 12,355 604,658
Total fund balances 96,472 484,827 -- 2,604 - -- 61,239 - - 645,142 12,355 12,355 657,497
Total liabilties and fund balances $ 97,089 499,228 78,311 2,604 89,787 2,071 61,239 27,000 15,896 873,225 12,355 12,355 885,580
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REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Restricted intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Donations
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers to (from) other funds
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Watauga County, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Statement 3

Total Law Enforcement Total
CDBG Lance Creek Nonmajor Center Nonmajor Total
Substance E-911 Fire Disaster Housing Stream CDBG CDBG Special Capital Capital Nonmajor
Abuse Telephone Districts Revaluation Relief Rehabiliation ~ Restoration  Rehabiliation Urgent Revenue Projects Projects Governmental
Tax Surcharge Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Grant Needs Funds Fund Fund Funds

- 1,294,585 - - - - - - 1,294,585 - - 1,294,585

- 253,636 - - - - - - - 253,636 - - 253,636
76,870 118,229 - -- 1,607,154 58,561 84,333 27,000 15,896 1,988,043 - - 1,988,043
1,850 16,387 - 1,017 - - - - - 19,254 - - 19,254
1,306 - - - - - - - - 1,306 - - 1,306
80,026 388,252 1,294,585 1,017 1,607,154 58,561 84,333 27,000 15,896 3,556,824 - - 3,556,824
- - - - - 58,561 23,094 27,000 15,896 124,551 - - 124,551

9,806 251,614 1,294,585 -- 1,607,209 - - - - 3,163,214 1,901,466 1,901,466 5,064,680
60,003 323,831 - - - - - - - 383,834 - - 383,834
69,809 575,445 1,294,585 -- 1,607,209 58,561 23,094 27,000 15,896 3,671,599 1,901,466 1,901,466 5,573,065
10,217 (187,193) - 1,017 (55) - 61,239 - - (114,775) (1,901,466)  (1,901,466) (2,016,241)
- (11,000) - (58,109) - - - - - (69,109) 585,411 585,411 516,302

- (11,000) - (58,109) - - - - - (69,109) 585,411 585,411 516,302

10,217 (198,193) - (57,092) (55) - 61,239 - - (183,884) (1,316,055)  (1,316,055) (1,499,939)
86,255 683,020 - 59,696 55 - - - - 829,026 1,328,410 1,328,410 2,157,436
96,472 484,827 - 2,604 - - 61,239 - - 645,142 12,355 12,355 657,497
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Statement 4
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Substance Abuse Tax Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 26,645 76,870 50,225
Investment Earnings -- 1,850 1,850
Donations -- 1,306 1,305
Total revenues 26,645 80,026 53,379
Expenditures:
Public Safety 19,090 9,806 9,284
Capital Outlay 50,877 60,003 (9,126)
Total expenditures 69,967 69,809 158
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (43,322) 10,217 53,537
Appropriated fund balance 43,322 -- (43,322)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures $ -- 10,217 10,215
Fund balance at beginning of year 86,255
Fund balance at end of year $ 96,472
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Statement 5
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
E-911 Telephone Surcharge Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Other taxes and licenses: 911 subscriber fees $ 265,000 253,636 (11,365)
Restricted intergovernmental: Wireless 911 funds 95,000 118,229 23,229
Investment earnings -- 16,387 16,387
Total revenues 360,000 388,252 28,251
Expenditures:
Public safety:
911 system subscriber fees:
Salaries and employee benefits 67,876 70,324 (2,448)
Operating expenses 200,184 181,290 18,894
Capital outlay 292,193 224,032 68,161
Total 911 system subscriber fees 560,253 475,646 84,607
Wireless 911:
Project Revenues 95,000 -- 95,000
Capital Outlay 168,528 99,799 68,729
Total Wireless 911 263,528 99,799 163,729
Total expenditures 823,781 575,445 248,336
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (463,781) (187,193) 276,587
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to other funds (11,000) (11,000) --
Appropriated fund balance 474,781 -- (474,781)
Total Other Financing Sources 463,781 (11,000) (474,781)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and appropriated fund balance
over expenditures $ -- (198,193) (198,194)
Fund balance at beginning of year 683,020
Fund balance at end of year $ 484,827
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Fire Districts Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 6

2006

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,299,224 1,294,585 (4,639)
Total revenues 1,299,224 1,294,585 (4,639)
Expenditures:
Public safety:

Beaver Dam Fire District 73,995 74,210 (215)
Blowing Rock Fire District 178,420 177,761 659
Boone Fire District 219,028 217,602 1,426
Cove Creek Fire District 156,385 157,905 (1,520)
Deep Gap Fire District 78,020 77,408 612
Foscoe Fire District 284,500 284,292 208
Meat Camp Fire District 90,095 88,945 1,150
Meat Camp/Creston Fire District 3,311 2,705 606
Shawneehaw Fire District 57,540 57,303 237
Stewart Simmons Fire District 44,760 43,143 1,617
Todd Fire District 30,260 29,301 959
Zionville Fire District 82,910 84,010 (1,100)
Total expenditures 1,299,224 1,294,585 4,639

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ --

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Revaluation Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 7

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ -- 1,017 1,017
Expenditures:
General government -- -- --
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures -- 1,017 1017
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to other funds (58,109) (58,109) --
Appropriated fund balance 58,109 -- (58,109)
Total other financing sources -- (58,109) (58,109)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
appropriated fund balance over expenditures $ -- (57,092) (57,092)
Fund balance at beginning of year 59,696
Fund balance at end of year $ 2,604
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Disaster Relief Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Statement 8

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 2,008,069 1,607,154 (400,915)
2,008,069 1,607,154 (400,915)
2,008,069 1,607,209 400,860
2,008,069 1,607,209 400,860
$ -- (55) (55)
55
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CDBG Housing Rehabilitation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 9

2006
Total Variance
Project Prior to Favorable
Authorization Year Actual Date (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 400,000 341,487 58,561 400,048 48
Total revenues 400,000 341,487 58,561 400,048 48
Expenditures:
Residence rehabilitation 60,000 33,106 3,845 36,951 23,049
Clearance activities 10,500 - 4,900 4,900 5,600
Relocation expenses 286,000 268,165 46,566 314,731 (28,731)
Planning 3,500 3,500 - 3,500 -
Grant administration 40,000 36,716 3,250 39,966 34
Total expenditures 400,000 341,487 58,561 400,048 (48)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ -- -- -- -- --
Fund balance at beginning of year --
Fund balance at end of year $ -
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Lance Creek Stream Restoration Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Stream Restoration

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Statement 10
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61,239

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
253,000 84,333 (168,667)
253,000 84,333 (168,667)
253,000 23,094 229,906
253,000 23,094 229,906
-- 61,239 61,239
$



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Repair and rehabilitaion
Replacement
Aid to local government

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

CDBG Rehabilitation Grant
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Statement 11

2006
Total Variance
Project Prior to Favorable
Authorization Year Actual Date (Unfavorable)
$ 210,750 - 27,000 27,000 (183,750)
210,750 - 27,000 27,000 (183,750)
57,750 - - - 57,750
99,000 - - - 99,000
54,000 - 27,000 27,000 27,000
210,750 - 27,000 27,000 183,750
$ -
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CDBG Urgent Needs

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Residence rehabilitation
Sewer improvements
Grant administration

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Statement 12

2006
Total Variance
Project Prior to Favorable
Authorization Year Actual Date (Unfavorable)
$ 460,000 - 15,896 15,896 (444,104)
460,000 - 15,896 15,896 (444,104)
330,000 - 8,097 8,097 321,903
80,000 - - - 80,000
50,000 - 7,799 7,799 42,201
460,000 - 15,896 15,896 444,104
$ -
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Law Enforcement Center Capital Project
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 13

Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Capital Projects 6,308,077 4,394,256 1,901,466 6,295,722 12,355
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (6,308,077) 4,394,256 (1,901,466) 6,295,722 12,355
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers - in (out):
From capital reserve fund 506,717 - 506,717 506,717 -
From general fund 801,360 722,666 78,694 -- --
Loan proceeds 5,000,000 5,000,000 -- 5,000,000 --
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,308,077 5,722,666 585,411 6,308,077 --
Increase (decrease) in fund balance $ -- 1,328,410 (1,316,055) 12,355 12,355
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,328,410
Fund balance at end of year $ 12,355
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Watauga County, North Carolina
Solid Waste Fund
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 14

2006
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Landfill charges $ 3,744,117
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 10,208
Total 3,356,620 3,754,325 397,705
Non-operating revenues:
Investment earnings 40,000 97,395 57,395
Total revenues 3,396,620 3,851,720 455,100
EXPENDITURES:
Landfill operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 871,572
Other operating expenditures 2,687,031
Total 3,652,319 3,558,603 93,716
Budgetary appropriations
Interest paid 7,053
Debt principal 91,960
Capital outlay 260,941
Total budgetary appropriations 485,595 359,954 125,641
Total expenditures 4,137,914 3,918,557 219,357
Revenues under expenditures (741,294) (66,837) 674,457
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds 351,554 351,554 -
Transfers to general fund for debt payment (88,986) (88,986) -
Appropriated fund balance 478,726 -- (478,726)
Total other financing sources (uses): 741,294 262,568 (478,726)
Revenues over expenditures and other sources (uses) $ - 195,731 195,731
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual)
to full accrual:
Reconciling items:
Capital outlays 260,941
Depreciation (177,998)
Payment of debt principal 91,960
Increase in accrued vacation pay (9,346)
Total reconciling items 165,557
Change in net assets $ 361,288
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Watauga County, North Carolina

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Social Services:
Assets:
Cash and Investments

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Health Benefits:
Assets:
Cash and Investments

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Vehicle Tax-Towns:
Assets:
Cash and Investments

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Total - All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and Investments

Liabilites:
Accounts Payable

Statement 15

Balance Balance
July 1, 2005 Additions Deletions June 30, 2006
18,052 152,530 158,351 12,231
18,052 152,530 158,351 12,231
183,644 64,888 7,305 241,227
183,644 64,888 7,305 241,227
4,473 104,701 105,037 4,137
4,473 104,701 105,037 4,137
206,169 322,119 270,693 257,595
206,169 322,119 270,693 257,595
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Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2006

Statement 16

65

Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Balance and Balance
June 30, 2005 Additions Credits June 30, 2006
Fiscal year:
2005 - 2006 $ -- 23,133,132 $22,743,850 389,282
2004 - 2005 364,822 -- 243,569 121,253
2003 - 2004 144,299 -- 63,728 80,571
2002 - 2003 99,335 -- 33,240 66,095
2001 - 2002 68,266 -- 15,442 52,824
2000 - 2001 52,513 -- 9,993 42,520
1999 - 2000 38,501 -- 3,561 34,940
1998 - 1999 37,022 -- 2,788 34,234
1997 - 1998 29,759 -- 2,137 27,622
1996 - 1997 23,353 -- 1,329 22,024
1995 - 1996 21,850 -- 21,850 --
$ 879,720 23,133,132 23,141,487 871,365
Plus: 2006 - 2007 receivable 126,227
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts General Fund (424,093)
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net General Fund $ 573,499
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 23,233,813
Reconciling items:
Advertising and interest collected (118,670)
Taxes written off 26,344
Total reconciling items (92,326)
Total collections and credits 23,141,487



Original levy:
Property taxed at current year's rate
Motor vehicles taxed at current year's rate
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate
Penalties
Total
Discoveries:
Current year taxes
Prior year taxes
Penalties
Total
Abatements:
Total property valuation
Net levy
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2006
Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County-Wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 17

Total Levy
Property
excluding
County-Wide Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
$ 5,381,305,382 $ 0.395 21,251,462 21,251,462 -
254,171,371 0.395 554,071 - 554,071
158,157,755 0.35 1,008,107 - 1,008,107
- 7,196 7,196 -
5,793,634,508 22,820,836 21,258,658 1,562,178
86,480,896 0.395 322,967 322,967 -
- 51,063 51,063 -
-- 5,144 5,144 --
86,480,896 379,174 379,174 -
(16,931,139) (66,878) (40,444) (26,434)
$ 5,863,184,265
23,133,132 21,597,388 1,535,744
389,282 255,699 133,583
$__ 22,743,850 21,341,689 1,402,161
98.32% 98.82% 91.30%
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WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Analysis of Current Tax Levy Statement 17-A
County-wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:

Assessment Ratio 100%
Real Property $ 5,208,131,598
Personal Property 587,196,610
Public Service Companies 67,856,057
Total Assessed Valuation 5,863,184,265
Tax Rate per $100 0.395
Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements) $__ 23133132

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists
the levies by the County on behalf of fire protection districts
for the fiscal year ended June 30:

Fire Protection Districts $ __1.282,146
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Taxpayer

Blue Ridge Electric
Spiritual Center of
America
Maharishi Spiritual
Center of America
Lowe's Home Centers
BellSouth
Mountaineer Village LLC
Appalachian South
Templeton Properties
Heavenly Mountain Resort Inc
Boone Mall

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Type of Business

Electric Utility
Resort/Real Estate

Resort/Real Estate
Home Supply Center
Telephone Utility
Rental Properties
Rental Properties
Rental / Real Estate
Resort / Real Estate
Shopping Center
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2005
Assessed
Valuation

$ 43,670,047
38,582,440

23,453,400
18,818,000
18,350,129
16,479,000
11,782,000
11,435,910
10,670,290
10,205,900

$ 203,447,116

Statement 17-B

Percentage of
Total Assessed
Valuation

0.75 %
0.66

0.40
0.32
0.31
0.28
0.20
0.19
0.18
0.17

3.46 %




Tax rate

Net levy
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2006
Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

Watauga County, North Carolina

Analysis of Current Tax Levy

Fire Districts
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 18

Beaver Dam Blowing Rock Boone Cove Creek  Deep Gap Foscoe Meat Camp Meat Camp/  Shawneehaw Stewart Todd Zionville

Fire District Fire District Fire District ~ Fire District  Fire District ~ Fire District Fire District Creston Fire District Simmons  Fire District Fire District
Fire District Fire District

0.05 0.03 0.02 0.05 0.03 0.05 0.03 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.04
72,905 176,542 216,996 155,681 77,510 283,179 88,782 2,553 56,994 42,137 27,116 81,752
1,998 1,728 3,742 3,809 2,481 4,375 2,833 114 1,550 1,048 498 2,293
70,907 174,814 213,254 151,872 75,029 278,804 85,949 2,439 55,444 41,089 26,618 79,459
97.26% 99.02% 98.28% 97.55% 96.80% 98.45% 96.81% 95.54% 97.28% 97.51% 98.16% 97.20%
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BRYCE HOLDER, CPA, P. A.

BRYCE HOLDER, CPA PO Box 1908 or 820-F State Farm Road Phone: 828-264-3595
Boone, North Carolina, 28607 Or: 800-456-3595

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Conpliance and
Ot her Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statenents Perforned in Accordance
Wth Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of County Comm ssioners
Wat auga County, North Carolina

W have audited the acconpanying financial statements of the governnental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
conponent units, each major fund, and the aggregate renaining fund informati on of
Wat auga County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which
col l ectively conprises Watauga County’s basic financial statenents, and have
i ssued our report thereon dated Septenmber 7, 2006. We did not audit the
financial statenents of Appal CART. Those financial statenents were audited by
anot her auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the anpunts included for Appal CART is based solely on
the report of the other auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Anerica and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
St andards, issued by the Conptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and perform ng our audit, we considered Watauga County’s interna

control over financial reporting in order to determ ne our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statenents and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. CQur

consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting
that m ght be nmaterial weaknesses. A naterial weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or nore of the internal control
conponents does not reduce to a relatively low level, the risk that msstatenents
caused by error or fraud in anpunts that would be material in relation to the
financial statenents being audited nay occur and not be detected within a tinely
period by enployees in the normal course of performng their assigned functions.
We noted no natters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Conpl i ance and Ot her Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Watauga County=ss
financial statenents are free of material msstatenent, we perfornmed tests of its
conpliance with certain provisions of |laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreenents, nonconpliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determ nation of financial statenent anmpbunts. However, providing an opinion
on conpliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test
di scl osed no instances of nonconpliance that are required to be reported under
Gover nnent Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of managenent, others within
t he organi zati on, nenbers of the Board of County Commi ssioners, and federal and



St at e awar di ng agenci es and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
shoul d not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

Bryce Holder, CPA, P.A.

Sept enber 7, 2006



BRYCE HOLDER, CPA, P. A.

BRYCE HOLDER, CPA PO Box 1908 or 820-F State Farm Road Phone: 828-264-3595
Boone, North Carolina, 28607 Or: 800-456-3595

Report on Conpliance Wth Requirenments Applicable to Each Maj or Federal
Program and I nternal Control Over Conpliance in Accordance Wth OVB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit |nplenentation Act

To the Board of County Comr ssioners
Wat auga County, North Carolina

Conpl i ance

We have audited the conpliance of Watauga County, North Carolina, with the types
of conpliance requirenments described in the US. Ofice of Managenent and Budget
(OVB) Circular A-133 Conpliance Suppl enment and the Audit Manual for Gover nnent al
Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Conmi ssion, that are
applicable to each of its major federal prograns for the year ended June 30,
2006. Wit auga County= nmmj or federal prograns are identified in the summary of
auditor= results section of the acconpanyi ng schedul e of findings and questioned
costs. Conpliance with the requirenents of |aws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its najor federal prograns is the responsibility of
WAt auga County=s nmnhagenent. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
WAt auga County=s conpliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of conpliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Governnment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OVMB Circular A 133, Audits of
States, Local Governnments, and Non-Profit Organi zations, and the State Single
Audit I nplenmentation Act. Those standards, OB Circular A 133, and the State
Single Audit Inplenentation Act require that we plan and performthe audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether nonconpliance with the types of
conpliance requirenents referred to above that could have a direct and nateri al
effect on a major federal programoccurred. An audit includes exam ning, on a
test basis, evidence about Watauga County= conpliance with those requirenents
and perform ng such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circunstances. W believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opi nion. OQur audit does not provide a |egal determ nation on WAatauga County=s
conpliance with those requirenents.

In our opinion, Watauga County conplied, in all material respects, with the
requirenents referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programnms for the year ended June 30, 2006.

Internal Control Over Conpliance

The managenent of Watauga County is responsible for establishing and mai ntaining
effective internal <control over conpliance wth requirenents of |aws,
regul ati ons, contracts and grants applicable to federal prograns. |In planning
and performing our audit, we considered Watauga County=ss internal control over




conpliance with requirenents that could have a direct and material effect on a
maj or federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on conpliance and to test and report on
i nternal control over conpliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the
State Single Audit |nplenentation Act.



Qur consideration of the internal control over conpliance would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses.
A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or nore of the internal control conponents does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that nonconpliance with applicable requirenents of |aws,
regul ati ons, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that woul d be materi a
in relation to a mmjor federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a tinely period by enployees in the normal course of performng
their assigned functions. W noted no matters involving the internal contro
over conpliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the nmnanagenent, others
within the organization, nenbers of the Board of County Conmi ssioners, and

federal awardi ng agenci es and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

Bryce Holder, CPA, P.A.

Sept enber 7, 2006



BRYCE HOLDER, CPA, P. A.

BRYCE HOLDER, CPA PO Box 1908 or 820-F State Farm Road Phone: 828-264-3595
Boone, North Carolina, 28607 Or: 800-456-3595

Report on Conpliance Wth Requirenments Applicable to Each Major State
Program and Internal Control Over Conpliance in Accordance Wth OVB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit |nplenentation Act

To the Board of County Commi ssioners
Wat auga County, North Carolina

Conpl i ance

We have audited the conpliance of Watauga County, North Carolina, with the types
of conpliance requirements described in the Audit Mnual for Governnental

Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Governnment Conmi ssion, that are
applicable to each of its major State progranms for the year ended June 30, 2006

Wat auga County= mmjor State prograns are identified in the summary of auditorss
results section of the acconpanyi ng schedul e of findings and questi oned costs.
Conpliance with the requirenents of l|aws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility of Watauga
Count yss nmanagenent . Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on Witauga
Countyss conpliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of conpliance in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Gover nment Auditing Standards, issued by the Conptroller CGeneral of the United
States; applicable sections of OVB Circular A 133 as described in the Audit
Manual for Governnmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit
| npl ementati on Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OB Grcular A 133,
and the State Single Audit |Inplenentation Act require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether nonconpliance with the
types of conpliance requirenents referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major State programoccurred. An audit includes exam ning,
on a test basis, evidence about Wtauga Countys conpliance wth those
requi rements and perform ng such other procedures as we consi dered necessary in
the circunstances. W believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opi nion. Qur audit does not provide a |egal determ nation on Watauga County=s
conpliance with those requirenents.

In our opinion, Watauga County conplied, in all material respects, with the
requi renments referred to above that are applicable to each of its major State
progranms for the year ended June 30, 2006.

Internal Control Over Conpliance

The managenent of WAtauga County is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal <control over conpliance wth requirenents of |[aws,
regul ati ons, contracts and grants applicable to State prograns. 1In planning and
perform ng our audit, we considered Watauga Countys internal control over
conpliance with requirenents that could have a direct and material effect on a
maj or State programin order to determne our auditing procedures for the purpose




of expressing our opinion on conpliance and to test and report on interna
control over conpliance in accordance with OMB Circular A 133 and the State
Single Audit |nplenmentation Act.

Qur consideration of the internal control over conpliance would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses.
A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or nore of the internal control conmponents does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that nonconpliance with applicable requirenents of |aws,
regul ati ons, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that woul d be materi a
inrelation to a najor State program being audited nmay occur and not be detected
within a tinmely period by enployees in the nornal course of performing their
assigned functions. W noted no matters involving the internal control over
conpliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the nmnanagenent, others
within the organization, nenbers of the Board of County Conmi ssioners, and

federal awardi ng agenci es and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other then these specific parties.

Bryce Holder, CPA, P.A.

Sept enber 7, 2006



Statement 19 (page 1 of 2)
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLI NA
SCHEDULE OF FI NDI NGS AND QUESTI ONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Summary of Auditor=s Results

Fi nanci al Statenments

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Mat eri al weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Reportabl e condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be

mat eri al weaknesses Yes X No

Nonconpl i ance material to financia
St at enents not ed Yes X No

Feder al Awards

Internal control over mmjor federal prograns:
Mat eri al weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Reportabl e condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be

mat eri al weaknesses Yes X None
reported
Type of auditor’s report issued nonconpliance for nmmjor federa

prograns: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 Yes X No
Identification of nmajor federal prograns:

Pr ogram Nane CFDA#

Title XI X Medicaid 93.778

Food Stanmp Program 10. 551

10. 561

Subsi di zed Child Care Cl uster 93.575

93. 596

93. 667

93. 558

State Children’s | nsurance Program 93. 667

Emer gency Watershed Protection 10. 906

Federal prograns that did not neet the criteria for a major program
using the criteria discussed in OVMB Circular No. A 133 Section .520 but
were tested as a nmjor program because the State awards nmet the
threshold for a major State program are included in the list of mgjor
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federal prograns (Subsidized Childcare Cluster).

St at ement

Wat auga County, North Carolina

Schedul e of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Federal Awards (cont.)

Dol | ar threshold used to distinguish
Bet ween Type A and Type B Prograns: $

Auditee qualifed as | owrisk auditee

State Awards

Internal control over mmjor State Prograns:
Mat eri al weakness(es) identified?
Reportabl e condition(s) identified

that are not considered to be
mat eri al weaknesses
Identification of major State prograns:

Progr am Nane

Subsi di zed Chil dcare cl uster

Fi nanci al Statenent Findings:

There were no findings or questioned costs.
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
There were no findings or questioned costs.
State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings or questioned costs.
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St at ement 20
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLI NA
SUVMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRI OR YEAR AUDI T FI NDI NGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

The prior year audit report disclosed no audit findings.
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Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/Program Title
Federal Grants:

U.S. Dept. of Agriculture
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
Administration:
Food Stamp Cluster:
Food Stamp Program-Noncash
State Administrative Matching Grants
for the Food Stamp Program
Total Food Stamp Cluster

Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:

Nutrition Program for the Elderly
Passed-through the N.C. Division of
Emergency Management:

Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention

Total U.S. Dept. of Agriculture

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Commerce
Community Development Block Grant
Entrepreneur Development Partnership
Total U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Dept of Transportation

Passed-through the N.C. Dept of Crime Control
and Public Safety:

Passed-through the N.C. Dept of Transportation
Safety Incentives to Prevent Operation of
Motor Vehicles by Intoxicated Persons

U.S. Dept of Homeland Security
Passed-through the N.C. Dept of Crime Control
and Public Safety:

Hazardous Material Emergency Preparedness Planning

Emergency Management Performance Grant
State Homeland Security Program
Total U.S. Dept of Homeland Security

U.S. Dept. of Justice
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program
Passed-through the N.C. Dept of Justice:
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing
Grants (COPS)
Passed-through the N.C. Dept of Crime Control and
Public Safety:
Northwest Methamphetamine Task Force

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Total U.S. Dept of Justice

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services
Administration on Aging
Aging Cluster:
Passed-through High Country Council of Governments
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ill F
Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Services
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ill B
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Il C
Nutritional Services
In Home Services - State Funds
Senior Center
Family Caregiver Support Program
Social Services Block Grant (SSBG)
In-home Services
Total Aging Cluster

Administration for Children and Families
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:

Division of Social Services:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Administration
Direct Benefit Payments
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant:
Administration
Direct Benefit Payments
Childcare Development Fund-Administration

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Statement 21 (1 of 3)

Federal
Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass-
CFDA Grantor's Through) State Local

Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
10.551 1,887,718 -- --

10.561 221,815 - 221,815

2,109,533 - 221,815
10.570 26,666 - -
10.906 1,270,201 311,975 -

3,406,400 311,975 221,815
14.228 58,561 - -
14.228 04-R-1285 25,000 - -
83,561 - -

20.605 4,497 - 5,188
97.021 1,375 -- --
97.042 20,381 - -
97.073 9,045 - -
30,801 - -
16.606 1,096 - -

16.607 5,555 -- 5,655
16.710 5,857 -- --

16.592 39,767 - 13,256

16.738 22,484 - 7,494

74,759 - 26,305

93.043 2,397 153 283

93.044 21,320 5,320 2,960

93.045 69,564 33,255 11,424

- 82,001 9,111

- 22,598 87

93.052 5,849 373 691

93.667 5,000 - 556

104,130 143,700 25,112

93.558 224,803 - 209,044
93.558 96,004 - -
93.568 72,465 14,535 --
93.568 43,274 - -
93.596 60,000 - -
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Statement 21 (2 of 3)
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Federal
Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass-
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Through) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services (cont.)
Child Welfare Services 93.645 14,162 3,542 1,179
Child Welfare Services:
Adoption Subsidy - Direct Benefit Payments 93.645 - 24,222 5,931
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 51,917 11,088 37,865
Foster Care - Direct Benefit Payments 93.658 82,786 13,376 37,443
Adoption Assistance - Administration 93.659 87,105 - 87,105
Adoption Assistance - Direct Benefit Payments 93.659 140,708 40,589 40,589
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 168,146 26,554 55,699
DCD Smart Start - 42,300 -
Division of Child Development:
Subsidized Child Care Cluster:
Child Care and Development
Fund - - Discretionary 93.575 251,320 - -
Child Care and Development
Fund - - Mandatory 93.596 117,032 - -
Child Care and Development
Fund - - Match 93.596 85,557 49,143 -
Total Child Care Development Fund Cluster 453,909 49,143 --

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 13,818 - -

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 77,877 - -

Smart Start - 174,931 -

TANF - Maintenance of Effort -- 78,479 --

Total Subsidized Child Care (Note 3) 545,604 302,553 --
Health Care Financing Administration
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:

Direct Benefit Payments:

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 15,623,017 7,402,516 1,262,857

Division of Social Services:

Medical Assistance Program

Administration 93.778 419,078 25,698 383,046
Health Choice 93.767 23,458 1,608 6,434
Links 93.674 2,065 516 --
Passed-through High Country Council of Governments:
Medicare Transitional Drug Assistance Program for States 93.783 10,000 - -
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:
Division of Facility Services:
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 18,224 - -
Passed-through the N.C. State Board of Elections
Help America Vote Act of 2002 93.617 18,048 -- --
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 17,804,994 8,052,797 2,152,304
Total Federal Awards 21,405,012 8,364,772 2,405,612
State Awards:
N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services
Division of Social Services
State/County Special Assistance for Adults-

Direct Benefit Payments - 159,498 159,498
State Foster Care Benefits Program - 9,952 9,952
Program Integrity - 249 -
State Aid to Counties - 20,725 -
State Adult Protective Service -- 25,610 --

Total N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services - 216,034 169,450
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Statement 21 (3 of 3)

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Federal
Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass-
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Through) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Office of the Governor
Department of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Programs - 117,981 36,945
North Carolina Helping Neighbors Fund - 2,830 -
Total Office of the Governor -- 120,811 36,945
N.C. Dept. of Public Instruction
Public School National Forest Service - 314 -
Total N.C. Dept. of Public Instruction - 314 -
N.C. Dept. of Transportation
Workfirst/Employment Transportation
Operating Assistance - 3,641 --
Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance
Program (E&DTAP) - 42,665 --
Rural General Public Program - 45,659 -
Total N.C. Dept. of Transportation - 91,965 -
N.C. Dept. of Environment, Health, and Natural Resources
Soil Conservation Assistance - 4,000 51,085
Soil Conservation Cost Sharing - 19,465 19,465
Division of Waste Management
Scrap Tire Disposal Grant - 10,208 -
Total N.C. Dept. of Environment, Health, and Natural Resources - 33,673 70,550
N.C. Dept. of Corrections
Criminal Justice Partnership Program 95-0704-1-A - 66,856 -
N.C. Division of Veteran's Affairs
Veteran's Service Program - 2,000 122,766
Total State awards - 531,653 399,711
Total federal and State awards $ 21,405,012 8,896,425 2,805,323

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity of Watauga County and is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133 "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations". Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the general purpose financial statements. Benefit payments are paid directly to
recipients and are not included in the county's general purpose financial statements. However, due to the county's involvement in determining
eligibility, they are considered federal awards to the county and are included on this schedule.

2. Subrecipients
Of the federal and State expenditures presented in the schedule, Watauga County provided federal and state awards to subrecipients as follows:

CFDA Federal State
Program Title Number Expenditures Expenditures
Food Stamp Program-noncash 10.551 $ 1,887,718 -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 126,060 --
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 15,623,017 7,402,516
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant 93.568 43,274 --
Child Welfare - Adoption Subsidy 93.645 - 24,222
Foster Care 93.658 82,786 13,376
Adoption Assistance 93.659 140,708 40,589
Adult Assistance - - 159,498

3. The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit requirement purposes:
Subsidized Child Care
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